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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good morning,

          3  and welcome. I am Councilman Jim Gennaro, Chairman

          4  of the Council's Committee on Environmental

          5  Protection.

          6                 Welcome to today's hearing on DEP's

          7  2006 Long-Term Watershed Protection Program, the

          8  plan that describes how DEP will maintain its

          9  Filtration Avoidance Determination, or FAD, for the

         10  Catskill/Delaware water supply system for the next

         11  five years.

         12                 The pure water, and it is pure, that

         13  New Yorkers rely upon and expect every time we turn

         14  on the tap, comes from the vast Upstate watershed

         15  that, combined with the complex, let us say

         16  plumbing, put in place to get that water to the

         17  City, and to each of our homes, represents one of

         18  the great moments of visionary City planning, and is

         19  one of the world's true engineering marvels.

         20                 This Watershed, and there's a million

         21  acres of it that extends 125 miles north and west of

         22  the City, was handed down to us from previous

         23  stewards who planned and built and protected it, so

         24  that our water would be as pure as it is.

         25                 It is our job to continue that
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          2  stewardship so that we, as well as generations going

          3  into the future, will enjoy the same critical

          4  benefits. In fact, I consider oversight of that

          5  stewardship to be one of the most important

          6  responsibilities that falls under my jurisdiction as

          7  chairman of this Committee.  Protecting and

          8  sustaining our water means, quite simply, protecting

          9  and sustaining our watershed.

         10                 DEP has invested considerable time

         11  and money and talents in this endeavor, and they

         12  have had much success.  The sewage treatment plants

         13  have been upgraded, leaking septic systems have been

         14  fixed, land and easements have been acquired,

         15  nonpoint sources of contamination have been

         16  controlled, farmers and foresters have been engaged

         17  to control run-off and repair, riparian buffers, to

         18  name just a few.

         19                 DEP should be amply lauded for the

         20  past and current efforts for protecting and

         21  sustaining the watershed, and drinking water it

         22  provides to New Yorkers.

         23                 The 2006 Long-Term Watershed

         24  Protection Program spells out DEP's vision for the

         25  future for protecting and preserving the
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          2  Catskill/Delaware Watershed, and water supply.

          3                 The Department will continue on a

          4  broad range of programs to protect our water from

          5  pollutants and pathogens. They will continue to

          6  measure and monitor and model.  They will continue

          7  to work with our partners in the Watershed to

          8  maintain harmony, it's an important work here, in

          9  our collective efforts.

         10                 I have great hope that this future

         11  Watershed and drinking water protection effort will

         12  work, and I believe that it must work because the

         13  price of failure in this effort, if it should occur,

         14  would be catastrophic.  The City would need to build

         15  a filtration plant for the Catskill/Delaware system

         16  that would cost billions to build, and hundreds of

         17  millions more each year to operate, maintain and

         18  service.

         19                 The bills that New Yorkers pay for

         20  water would not go unaffected by such a purchase.

         21                 There are serious threats to the

         22  Watershed that make the specter of possible failure

         23  all too real.  Increased turbidity is causing

         24  anxiety among some of the regulators, we'll be

         25  hearing about that, and vast stretches of watershed
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          2  land are coming under increasing pressure from

          3  developers, and such development could make it

          4  nearly impossible to maintain the high quality of

          5  water needed to avoid filtration.

          6                 The fact the DEP's 2006 Long- Term

          7  Watershed Protection Program is a relatively short-

          8  term plan, should not obscure that fact that

          9  protecting and sustaining the Watershed is an

         10  extremely long- term responsibility, and that long-

         11  term commitments, particularly long- terms

         12  commitments to land acquisition in the Watershed are

         13  the best way to make sure that we have this

         14  protection.

         15                 Such long- term commitments to

         16  protecting and sustaining our Watershed and the

         17  drinking water it provides, I would say are what we

         18  owe those New Yorkers who follow us, and I would

         19  add, are in lock- step with keeping with the new

         20  standard the Mayor has set for the City; a long-

         21  term commitment to long term planning and

         22  environmental sustainability.

         23                 With that said, I will call upon

         24  Walter Mugdan from the U.S. EPA to testify regarding

         25  DEP's 2006 Long- Term Plan to maintain the City's
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          2  Filtration Avoidance Determination, and Phil Sweeney

          3  also, yes?

          4                 I would like to at the outset thank

          5  everyone for coming to this hearing today.  There

          6  are many, many folks who are part of this effort who

          7  follow this very, very closely, some of whom may not

          8  have the opportunity to testify today, but we value

          9  their input and their following of this issue very

         10  much.

         11                 I'd also like to staff of the

         12  Committee, Committee Counsel, Donna De Costanzo, the

         13  Policy Analyst of the Committee, Dan Avery, my own

         14  Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn, and for DEP for

         15  bringing the whole team here today, we certainly

         16  appreciate having everyone here.

         17                 I want to thank this panel also for

         18  making time to come here today.

         19                 Counsel to the Committee, Donna De

         20  Costanzo, will provide the oath, and then once

         21  sworn, you can state your names for the record and

         22  proceed with your testimony.

         23                 Thanks once again for being here.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         25  raise your right hand.
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          2                 In the testimony that you're about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          5                 MR. MUGDAN:  I do.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          7                 MR. MUGDAN:  Good morning Chairman

          8  and members of the Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I'll just

         10  mention for the record that we have a lot of

         11  hearings going on today.  Council Member Vallone is

         12  chairing his own hearing across the street, Council

         13  Member Mark- Viverito is upstairs also in another

         14  hearing. So, most of the members have other hearings

         15  going on at this moment, so I apologize for that,

         16  but we're here and everything's on the record.

         17                 MR. MUGDAN:  Sure, I know that the

         18  other members of the committee are equally

         19  interested in this.  So, we appreciate their

         20  attention.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I don't know

         22  about equally, but close, close.

         23                 MR. MUGDAN:  Fair enough, deeply

         24  interested but certainly not as deeply as the

         25  chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          3  thank you.  I appreciate that, Walter.

          4                 MR. MUGDAN:  Well, thank you.

          5                 I am Walter Mugdan.  I am Director of

          6  the Division of Environmental Planning and

          7  Protection in Region 2 of the U.S. Environmental

          8  Protection Agency, and with me today is Phil

          9  Sweeney, who is leader of our New York City

         10  Watershed Protection team.

         11                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         12  to provide comments at today's hearing.

         13                 As you know, and as you mentioned in

         14  your opening remarks Chairman, for the Catskill and

         15  Delaware water supply, EPA currently retains primacy

         16  for the enforcement of the Surface Water Treatment

         17  Rule promulgated by EPA under the federal Safe

         18  Drinking Water Act.  We implement this authority in

         19  cooperation with the New York State Department of

         20  Health, or DOH.  Through this authority, EPA has, at

         21  this time, primary responsibility for the filtration

         22  avoidance decisions for the Catskill/Delaware

         23  system.

         24                 In 2002, EPA most recently re-issued

         25  a Filtration Avoidance Determination, which is
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          2  commonly called the FAD, as you mentioned, which

          3  allowed continued operation of the Cat/Del system as

          4  an unfiltered water supply.

          5                 The FAD, which covers a five-year

          6  period, also describes watershed protection

          7  activities that the City and its partners are

          8  responsible to implement in order to protect water

          9  quality, together with the State DOH and the New

         10  York State Department of Environmental Conservation,

         11  or DEC.  EPA continuously monitors the City's

         12  progress in implementing various FAD programs.

         13                 For the City, the Bureau of Water

         14  Supply within the New York City Department of

         15  Environmental Protection, or DEP, coordinates

         16  implementation of FAD programs.

         17                 So, these are the major partners with

         18  whom we work on this matter.

         19                 The City has invested, as we

         20  understand it, more than $1 billion in watershed

         21  protection programs over the lifetime of the FAD,

         22  and some of the notable accomplishments to date

         23  include:  74,400 acres have been protected through

         24  the land acquisition program; 95 percent of the

         25  large farms in the West of- Hudson watershed are
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          2  implementing whole farm plans to control pollutant

          3  runoff; more than 2,100 septic systems have been

          4  repaired or replaced; wastewater treatment projects

          5  are completed of initiated for 13 communities, from

          6  a prioritized list of communities that was included

          7  in the original Watershed Memorandum of Agreement;

          8  West- of- Hudson upgrades to existing municipal and

          9  private/commercial wastewater plants are nearly all

         10  complete, with 97 percent of the flow receiving

         11  advanced tertiary treatment; and for the critical

         12  Kensico Reservoir basin, 45 stormwater improvement

         13  projects that implement "best management activities"

         14  or "best management practices have been constructed

         15  to reduce stormwater pollution, and additional

         16  projects are being completed in the other

         17  East-of-Hudson basins.

         18                 The 2002 FAD outlined the process

         19  that EPA would follow to evaluate progress and

         20  re-visit the filtration avoidance decision.  Over

         21  the past year, EPA completed a public outreach

         22  process, which allowed us to get input from the

         23  general public, and from watershed partners.

         24                 We reviewed the DEP's report called,

         25  2006 Watershed Protection Summary and Assessment,
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          2  which provided a summary of program activities, and

          3  included water quality status and trends

          4  information.

          5                 Overall, water quality in the City's

          6  reservoirs remains good.

          7                 In August of 2006, EPA released its

          8  report called, A Report on the City of New York's

          9  Progress in Implementing the Watershed Protection

         10  Program, and Complying with the Filtration Avoidance

         11  Determination, pretty long title there.  While a few

         12  shortcomings were identified, EPA's report concluded

         13  that the City was in substantial compliance with the

         14  terms of the 2002 FAD.

         15                 Throughout this last summer and into

         16  the fall, EPA met with the State and with DEP to

         17  discuss all of the FAD programs, and by the way,

         18  there are more than 20 of them, and to seek

         19  consensus on the next round of program commitments.

         20                 In late November, a principals

         21  meeting was held with DEP's Regional Administrator,

         22  DEP's Commissioner Lloyd, and senior State

         23  officials, during which all parties expressed

         24  general satisfaction with the progress that had been

         25  made in the programmatic meetings.
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          2                 In December, DEP released its 2006

          3  Long- Term Watershed Protection Program report which

          4  outlined the City's new five- year watershed

          5  protection program that is was proposing to us.

          6                 We at EPA are now developing a draft

          7  renewal of the FAD.  The draft FAD document should

          8  be complete by late February, and we will provide

          9  opportunity for public review and comment

         10  thereafter.

         11                 Following our evaluation of any

         12  comments that we receive, we expect to issue a final

         13  FAD in the late April or early May timeframe.

         14                 There's a few issues that are still

         15  under discussion, but in general the draft FAD will

         16  be based on the DEP's December Long- Term report.

         17                 Again, that report as I mentioned,

         18  was a product of a lot of discussions that we had

         19  had with the City, and with the other stakeholders,

         20  and so we were very comfortable with almost all of

         21  what's in there.

         22                 A partial list of the new and ongoing

         23  program commitments includes the following;

         24  continuing support for wastewater infrastructure

         25  initiatives, including residential septic system
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          2  rehab and maintenance programs; upgrades to existing

          3  wastewater plants; completion of ongoing projects

          4  for new wastewater treatment plants; three new

          5  community wastewater treatment projects, and, two

          6  new sewer extension projects.

          7                 There's going to be continuation of

          8  the land acquisition program that you mentioned,

          9  Chairman, in your opening comments.  There will

         10  provisions for $50 million of new funding, which

         11  would bring the City's total investment in this

         12  program to $350 million over the years of the FAD;

         13  continuation of the Catskill Turbidity Control

         14  program, which is evaluating potential capital

         15  projects meant to mitigate turbidity problems in the

         16  Schoharie and Ashokan Reservoirs; new commitments

         17  for stream management, including five new stream

         18  restoration projects, implementation of stream

         19  management plan recommendations, a new technical

         20  assistance effort, and a new $2 million funding

         21  program for local stream protection initiatives;

         22  continued support for agricultural and forestry

         23  programs, which include installation of "best

         24  management practices" to control runoff; development

         25  of a new Kensico Action Plan which will include
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          2  implementation of new pollution remediation

          3  practices; implementation of a new septic repair

          4  program in the Kensico basin; and continued

          5  maintenance of existing stormwater control

          6  infrastructure; and there will be continuation of

          7  the City's East- of- Hudson Nonpoint Source

          8  Pollution Control Program, including stormwater

          9  remediation projects, coordination with Putnam

         10  County's septic repair program, and there will be

         11  included a new program which will provide $4.5

         12  million for municipal stormwater pollution control

         13  projects in the Cross River and Croton Falls basins;

         14  continuation of the City's regulatory programs,

         15  project review activities and disease surveillance

         16  program, and of course, there will be the ongoing

         17  construction of the ultra- violet treatment plant at

         18  Eastview.

         19                 All of these programs, and more, will

         20  be summarized in the new FAD document.

         21  Implementation schedules will be included, and

         22  frequent reporting by the City will be required.

         23                 In summary, I am pleased to report

         24  that EPA, DEP, and the State DOH and DEC, have

         25  completed a rigorous review of the City's programs,
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          2  and that we have developed a strong set of new

          3  requirements derived primarily from the commitments

          4  in the City's December Long- Term report.

          5                 We will be seeking public review and

          6  comment on the draft FAD, and we believe that the

          7  final FAD will provide for enhanced protection of

          8  the Catskill/Delaware water supply. Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         11  thank you Mr. Mugdan.

         12                 Mr. Sweeny we appreciate your

         13  commitment.  It's been great.  So, we really

         14  appreciate that over years and years that we've been

         15  doing this.  I appreciate that.

         16                 Let me just jump right into

         17  questions. Unfortunately, we have the room for a

         18  somewhat limited time.  So, I'm going to try to,

         19  sort of, just focus on my questioning, get some

         20  items on the record.

         21                 With regard to land acquisition, I

         22  certainly appreciate your comments on that, how

         23  important is land acquisition as a strategy for

         24  safeguarding unfiltered water supply, such as the

         25  Cat/Del water supply?
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          2                 MR. MUGDAN:  We believe that land

          3  acquisition is a very important element of the

          4  City's Long- Term Watershed Protection program, and

          5  it will be a part of the new FAD.  It will be a

          6  requirement of the new FAD.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How important

          8  is the continuation of a DEP land acquisition

          9  program for at least the next five years to help

         10  ensure continued filtration avoidance for the

         11  Cat/Del water supply?

         12                 MR. MUGDAN:  Again, it's very

         13  important and specifically for the next five years

         14  it will be  --  that will be included in the next

         15  FAD, with specific obligations during this five-

         16  year period to continue the  --  our intent is that

         17  the City would basically continue roughly the same

         18  pace of land acquisition as had been the case for

         19  the previous years.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, let's

         21  talk about that for a second.

         22                 Regarding land acquisition, you

         23  mentioned provisions for $50 million in new funding,

         24  and I understand that will be over the next five

         25  years, right?  That's what you called for.
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          2                 MR. MUGDAN:  Right, yes, let me go

          3  into the money a little bit  --  there was an

          4  original commitment for, I'm going back now ten

          5  years, for $250 million and then later, there was an

          6  additional $50 million commitment.

          7                 So, that brought the total commitment

          8  up to about $300 million.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Which has

         10  yielded about 75,000 acres.

         11                 MR. MUGDAN:  That's correct, and of

         12  that $300 million to date, the City has spent a

         13  little over $200 million. Let's say there's give or

         14  take $90 million left out of that $300 million

         15  original commitment.

         16                 We are asking for an additional $50

         17  million commitment over the next five year period,

         18  and actually we intend that that amount of money, if

         19  you take the available sums from the previous

         20  commitment, plus the new  --  so, it's about $140

         21  and we're talking round numbers here, it's our

         22  expectation and intent that that commitment would be

         23  sufficient to actually carry a little beyond that

         24  five year period of this next new FAD.

         25                 Our goal, and the City agrees with
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          2  this goal, is to have enough money already committed

          3  so that it goes a little bit into what we hope and

          4  assume will be the next FAD period, into the

          5  beginning of the next FAD period.

          6                 We assume that the City will need to

          7  spend, give or take again, $24 or $25 million a year

          8  to maintain roughly the current pace of land

          9  acquisition.

         10                 That may be higher in some years,

         11  lower in others, but that's on balance.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That's been the

         13  pace that it's been going since the inception?

         14                 MR. MUGDAN:  Yes, if you look at  --

         15  the City has spent as I said, in round numbers, $210

         16  million.  Over ten years, that's about $21 million a

         17  year if you averaged it out over that full period.

         18  Obviously, land prices have gone up in recent years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, I was just

         20  about to make that point because if we're   --  it's

         21  2007, not 1997, and I'm wondering if that level of

         22  funding would be sufficient to sustain the pace of

         23  acquisition.

         24                 Now, we all think it's kind of

         25  important to.
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          2                 MR. MUGDAN:  Sure, first of all, we

          3  do anticipate that there would be an increase at the

          4  average expenditure over the next five years would

          5  be greater than the average expenditure over the

          6  previous five or ten years, even though we

          7  anticipate that the amount of acreage being

          8  protected would probably be about the same from year

          9  to year.

         10                 So right off the bat, there is some

         11  expectation of inflation or price increases that's

         12  built into that expectation, roughly 20 percent, or

         13  25 percent, is what you see in the numbers that I've

         14  just given you.

         15                 Well, $21 million over the last ten

         16  years is an average per year, and a little bit more

         17  than that, $24 million as an expected average for

         18  the next few years, or $25 million.

         19                 In addition, the City has increased

         20  the amount of acreage that it has protected through

         21  easements as opposed to in fee acquisitions in

         22  recent years.  We think that's a sensible approach,

         23  and when you buy an easement on a per acre basis,

         24  it's a little less expensive than if you buy in-

         25  fee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 MR. MUGDAN:  I can add one thing that

          5  we do  -- we will be building into the FAD a

          6  provision that, if there comes a time where the

          7  primacy agency, whether it's us or ultimately the

          8  State of New York Health Department, if there's come

          9  a time when the primacy agency believes that the

         10  amount of money that's available is not sufficient,

         11  or that there would be more funding that would be

         12  necessary in order to maintain an adequate pace of

         13  land acquisition, and more importantly in order

         14  therefore, to maintain filtration avoidance, then

         15  there's a provision where we will consult with the

         16  City, we'll talk about that if we reach an

         17  agreement, fine, but ultimately, if the City wishes

         18  to maintain its filtration avoidance, and if the

         19  primacy agency believes that that is necessary, then

         20  that's what's going to have to be done.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And that'll be

         22  part of the new FAD?

         23                 MR. MUGDAN:  Yes, right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That's how you

         25  envision that?  Okay.
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          2                 The $50 million funding commitment

          3  will be also written into the new FAD as well?

          4                 MR. MUGDAN:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The acquisition

          6  targets or the solicitation targets that are in DEP

          7  2006 Plan, you think are sufficient to make a land

          8  acquisition--

          9                 MR. MUGDAN:  We think so, I mean,

         10  there's solicitation and we've also, already in the

         11  previous FAD, we required the City to do re-

         12  solicitation, and I think the City intends to

         13  continue doing that so that parcels that have

         14  previously been solicited can be re- solicited if

         15  there was no sale in the past.

         16                 We assume that there's  --  I'll

         17  check with my colleague, but I think 50,000 acres

         18  per year to be solicited, that would be a minimum,

         19  and the expectation is that out of that, there will

         20  be sufficient acreage that will then result in a

         21  deal being made so that the acquisition continues,

         22  more or less, apace.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24                 I'd like to recognize that we've been

         25  joined by Council Member Stewart from Brooklyn, and
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          2  we appreciate the councilman being here.

          3                 With the previous questions that I

          4  just posed regarding land acquisition, those numbers

          5  don't include the Watershed Agricultural Council

          6  farm easement, or whatever  -- they're not part of

          7  that, right?

          8                 MR. MUGDAN:  The numbers include all

          9  of the different types of acquisition programs,

         10  easements as well as agricultural easements, and

         11  other easements as well are wrapped up in those

         12  numbers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so that's

         14  the sum total of--

         15                 MR. MUGDAN:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- of

         17  everything?

         18                 MR. MUGDAN:  And there's different

         19  pigeon holes that the different activities fit into,

         20  but this what we've been talking about is total

         21  numbers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The funding

         23  questions of the $210 million that's been spent,

         24  does that include monies that went towards the

         25  agricultural, as well?
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          2                 MR. MUGDAN:  Yes, that's certainly my

          3  understanding.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, in your

          5  statement Mr. Mugdan, you made reference that the

          6  EPA's report concluded that the City was in what you

          7  termed, "substantial compliance with the terms of

          8  the 2002 FAD," which is good, and if we can just get

          9  into the term "substantial compliance" that suggests

         10  that there were some issues that were not totally in

         11  compliance.

         12                 Could you speak to that a little bit?

         13                 MR. MUGDAN:  There's a couple of

         14  examples.

         15                 Typically, it was missed deadlines or

         16  dates.

         17                 One example would be the ultra-

         18  violet filtration plant construction schedule.  The

         19  2002 FAD had a schedule in it, that schedule was

         20  actually then changed, an amendment to the FAD was

         21  issued about just exactly a year ago, I guess, which

         22  adjusted the schedule for a variety of reasons.

         23  That schedule was not met, and the new FAD will have

         24  a different schedule as well.  So, that's an

         25  example.
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          2                 There were some other projects that

          3  ended up slipping  --  where the dates slipped a

          4  little bit, but again, we thought that on balance,

          5  the work was proceeding in a timely way, and was

          6  getting done, and that they benefits were being

          7  realized.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have a

          9  little section here on stream management.

         10                 I remember once upon a time many

         11  years ago, there was the issue of stream

         12  classification.  Is that still an issue, the

         13  classification of streams?

         14                 I remember that once upon a time it

         15  was an issue.

         16                 MR. MUGDAN:  That's one that doesn't

         17  particularly ring a bell with me.  I'm sorry I'm

         18  not--

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  There were

         20  certain fishing streams that had, kind of, like this

         21  prime classification or whatever, but other streams

         22  that were used not so much for fishing but for water

         23  supply, it didn't have the same level of stream

         24  classification that, maybe I'm showing my age, this

         25  is--           MR. MUGDAN:  No, I mean, I'm sure

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you're right there are different--

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  This could have

          4  been an issue from like the Stan Michael's days or

          5  whatever.

          6                 MR. MUGDAN:  You're quite right that

          7  different types of streams, and different streams

          8  have different water qualities, standards,

          9  associated with different intended uses. I'm not

         10  specifically familiar of how that plays in here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         12                 MR. MUGDAN:  Those may be DEC issues,

         13  and perhaps, if the DEC is here later on, you may

         14  want to refer that question to them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, with

         16  regards to Kensico, you talked about the Kensico

         17  Action Plan, because Kensico continues to be a great

         18  concern for the Committee as it is for DEP, and I'm

         19  sure EPA and everyone else involved.

         20                 Talk a little bit more about the

         21  Kensico Action Plan, like what--

         22                 MR. MUGDAN:  If it's okay,

         23  councilman, I'm going to turn this over to my

         24  colleague Phil Sweeney.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Of course, by
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          2  all means, sure.

          3                 Phil, if you'll just state your name

          4  for the record before you commence speaking, that

          5  would be great.

          6                 MR. SWEENEY:  Sure, my name is Philip

          7  Sweeney.

          8                 Yes, the Kensico Action Plan is meant

          9  to provide opportunities for additional remediation

         10  efforts.

         11                 The City has implemented a large

         12  number of stormwater control structures, essentially

         13  settling ponds, detention basins and the like.  The

         14  Kensico Action Plan is meant to provide

         15  opportunities to identify additional opportunities

         16  to implement remediation types of projects.  It

         17  could reduce sediment runoff.  It could be

         18  additional opportunities to put in new BMP'S, new

         19  best management practices.  The main infrastructure

         20  is in place through the City's past program.

         21                 So, this is carrying forward the

         22  program, and looking for further opportunities to

         23  build some additional BMP's, implement some

         24  additional control programs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I guess
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          2  the question is when we're talking about Kensico,

          3  since it's such a critical element, will it be

          4  enough?

          5                 I know that there's an attempt to try

          6  to continue to buy land in Kensico Watershed, and of

          7  course, that land is very pricey, and what's your

          8  assessment of how land acquisition is going in the

          9  Kensico Watershed, and is that going to be a prime

         10  focus?

         11                 Is this something that you're

         12  concerned about, or, talk about that a little bit.

         13  It's only like eight or ten square miles, or

         14  whatever it is, right, some small amount of area?

         15                 MR. SWEENEY:  Right, it is a small

         16  basin.

         17                 Land acquisition in the Kensico Basin

         18  has been a long-standing priority of EPA, and the

         19  City.  The City has not had a lot of success.

         20  They've had some success acquiring properties in the

         21  Kensico Basin.  It's not for lack of trying. There

         22  have been some properties that they City has almost

         23  acquired, and then it hasn't quite worked out.

         24                 We think the City has made good

         25  efforts.  We think the City needs to continue it's
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          2  efforts.  It is, indeed, a critical basin.  We are

          3  hoping for more success as we move forward.

          4                 MR. MUGDAN:  I can add one thing.

          5                 I mentioned earlier that we have  --

          6  we will be building into the FAD this opportunity

          7  for the primacy agency to sit down with the City

          8  during the FAD period, if we believe that there is a

          9  need for additional funding to be committed to the

         10  Land Acquisition Program.

         11                 Here's an example of how that might

         12  conceivably come up.

         13                 Let's say we're towards the end of

         14  the five year period, and much of the committed

         15  money has been spent in a successful acquisition

         16  program, and suddenly in the Kensico Basin a

         17  particularly valuable, and large track of land comes

         18  on the market, and is available, and everybody

         19  agrees that it really has to be acquired in order to

         20  provide the protection, the continued protection, of

         21  the Kensico Basin that we want.  That might be an

         22  opportunity or an event which would cause additional

         23  funding to have to be committed earlier than

         24  anticipated.  That's the kind of thing we had in

         25  mind when we wrote that in there.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  In the Kensico

          3  Basin, how much undeveloped land, I mean it's a

          4  complicated question but it may be a question that

          5  defies your ability to crystallize that number, but

          6  how much available, undeveloped land is there in the

          7  Kensico Basin, percentage terms or whatever way you

          8  can calculate it?

          9                 MR. SWEENEY:  I don't have that

         10  immediately available.  The City may indeed have

         11  more specifics on that. Generally, it's pretty well

         12  developed.  There are a couple of large properties

         13  that are still out there that conceivably could be

         14  available, and there are some smaller parcels, some

         15  in commercial districts, that might be available but

         16  it's  --  the bulk of the basin is, indeed,

         17  developed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  thank you.

         20                 I think we have one or two more

         21  questions.

         22                 Okay, you had mentioned previously

         23  about the State Health Department, and they're

         24  certainly involved and the questions is, to what

         25  extent is the State Department of Health involved in
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          2  the development of the 2007 FAD for the Cat/Del

          3  water system?

          4                 MR. MUGDAN:  They're fully engaged,

          5  and fully involved.  We work very closely together

          6  and so this is a pretty complete partnership.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you believe

          8  that the Department of Health has sufficient

          9  resources and expertise  -- talk about a loaded

         10  question  --  do you believe that the Department of

         11  Health has sufficient resources and expertise to

         12  effectively enforce the Service Water Treatment Rule

         13  for the Catskill/Delaware water supply?

         14                 Sorry Walter, I had to--

         15                 MR. MUGDAN:  No problem, I mean I

         16  believe that your question also assumes that the

         17  primacy will shift from EPA to the Department of

         18  Health during this coming period of term. It is our

         19  expectation that that will be the case, and we do

         20   --  it is essential for any primacy agency to have

         21  sufficient resources to carry out a credible and

         22  effective program of implementation.  Enforcement,

         23  we do think the State Health Department does have

         24  that, and has shown that.

         25                 So, at this time we anticipate that
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          2  the primacy will shift from EPA to the State Health

          3  Department.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you know

          5  when that will be, do you have any sense of that?

          6                 MR. MUGDAN:  The expectation under

          7  the original MOA was that is would happen at the end

          8  of a ten year period, and that will be then  --

          9  that would be the April/May timeframe of this year.

         10                 There are specific things that we're

         11  still working on with the State.  We've identified a

         12  couple of elements that the State needs to have in

         13  place for primacy to shift, and so that will answer

         14  the questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, when that

         16  happens, what will EPA's involvement be with respect

         17  for the FAD for the Cat/Del water supply?

         18                 MR. MUGDAN:  Just as the State Health

         19  Department has been fully engaged during our period

         20  of primacy, it's our absolute intention to remain

         21  fully and actively engaged during their time of

         22  primacy.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  thank you so much.

         25                 MR. MUGDAN:  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Mr. Mugdan and

          3  Mr. Sweeney, we appreciate your steadfast commitment

          4  to watershed protection, and filtration avoidance.

          5                 We're joined by Council Member Mark-

          6  Viverito, another valued member of the Committee.

          7  Thank you for being here, Melissa.

          8                 The next panel, DEP Commissioner,

          9  Emily Lloyd, and David Warne, also of DEP.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  And Deputy

         11  Commissioner, Paul Rush, and Steven Lawitts.

         12                 Thank you, thank you Commissioner,

         13  appreciate your being here.

         14                 Counsel to the Committee will give

         15  the oath, and then you can proceed with your

         16  statement.

         17                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         18  raise your right hand.

         19                 In the testimony that you are about

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Yes.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thanks.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  I have, as

         25  usual, not as brief as I would like testimony,
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          2  although there is a great deal we wanted to put

          3  before the Committee, but as I go along, I'm going

          4  to skip sections in order to conserve time, and

          5  allow us more time for questions and answers.

          6                 I know there are several other people

          7  who you want to have testify, or who want to testify

          8  today.

          9                 So, thank you for this opportunity to

         10  present testimony on DEP's Long- Term Watershed

         11  Protection Program.

         12                 In my remarks I will focus on our

         13  efforts to protect the Catskill and Delaware

         14  Watershed since they're the subject of the

         15  Filtration Avoidance Determination, which we're

         16  discussing here today.  But, it is important to note

         17  that many of the techniques and strategies described

         18  in my statement are also employed in the Croton

         19  Watershed.

         20                 I plan to share with you examples of

         21  the many successes of New York City's Watershed

         22  Protection Program, as well as the challenges which

         23  remain, such as managing turbidity in the Ashokan

         24  Basin.

         25                 Supplying approximately 90 percent of
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          2  the potable water needs of New York City, the

          3  Catskill and Delaware watersheds are critical pieces

          4  of our magnificent water supply system which can

          5  sustain our City indefinitely, provided it is

          6  adequately maintained and protected.

          7                 Our commitment to protecting New York

          8  City's watersheds has never been stronger than it is

          9  right now, as the Bloomberg Administration is

         10  engaged in a comprehensive long- range planning

         11  effort, known as PlaNYC.  Let me speak on behalf of

         12  the Administration, as well as myself, Mr. Chairman,

         13  in thanking you for your partnership in creating

         14  this Plan that will no doubt have tremendous effect

         15  on the future of our City and the future of the

         16  water supply.

         17                 I'd also like to take a minute to

         18  thank the United States Environmental Protection

         19  Agency, New York State Department of Environmental

         20  Conservation, and the New York State Department of

         21  Health for a tremendous partnership that has

         22  benefitted not only the residents of New York City,

         23  but the approximately half the residents of New York

         24  State, or some nine million people, who receive

         25  their water from New York City's water supply
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          2  system. Maintaining the unfiltered status of the

          3  Catskill and Delaware systems required the

          4  cooperation and hard work of these federal and state

          5  agencies who share DEP's vision of continuing to

          6  operate the Catskill and Delaware systems without

          7  filtration.

          8                 As a result of these partnerships,

          9  New York City has been granted a series of

         10  Filtration Avoidance Determination's, and we are

         11  cautiously optimistic that we will receive another

         12  later this year.  The significance of these

         13  milestones is especially apparent, when we consider

         14  the fact that New York City is one of only five

         15  cities that has received a Filtration Avoidance

         16  Determination, and significantly the largest.  The

         17  others are Boston, Portland, Seattle, and San

         18  Francisco.

         19                 I would also like to acknowledge the

         20  central role of our partners throughout the

         21  Watershed.  Numerous signatories to the Memorandum

         22  of Agreement, counties, towns, villages,

         23  municipalities, hamlets and not- for- profit

         24  organizations, have been critical to New York City's

         25  ability to provide water of the highest quality.
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          2                 I would like to add my personal

          3  appreciation for the ongoing commitment of the

          4  watershed leaders with whom we have worked, and

          5  continue to work, so closely.

          6                 In 2006, we joined forces to address

          7  two difficult issues:  The need for emergency

          8  repairs to the Gilboa Dam in Schoharie County; and

          9  later, the devastation caused by the flooding of the

         10  Delaware River.  Even as repairs to Gilboa were

         11  underway, an extensive emergency alert network was

         12  established, and by mid- December all emergency

         13  repairs to the Gilboa Dam had been completed.  This

         14  could not have been accomplished so swiftly and

         15  efficiently had it not been for the close working

         16  relationship between Schoharie County and DEP

         17  officials, which is an example of the kind of

         18  cooperation and communication that can benefit both

         19  New York City, and the upstate communities that host

         20  our water supply system.

         21                 In June, DEP Police were an essential

         22  part of the first responder rescue operations during

         23  the rain and floods that afflicted the Catskills and

         24  other regions.  Personnel from DEP, the Department

         25  of Sanitation, and other City agencies volunteered
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          2  to assist with the flood cleanup, and a flotilla of

          3  equipment journeyed upstate to support their

          4  efforts.  Although reservoirs do not cause flooding,

          5  and in fact, attenuate and slow flood waters, these

          6  dramatic events have led us to test additional

          7  operational steps that should allow us to increase

          8  our capacity to attenuate flooding from storms.

          9  These types of operational adjustments, facilitated

         10  by cooperative working relationships, will play a

         11  particularly significant role as we and other water

         12  supply utilities throughout the country begin to

         13  plan for and anticipate the impacts of global

         14  change, which may very likely bring about

         15  increasingly extreme weather cycles.

         16                 In 2006, we also made considerable

         17  progress in expanding recreational uses of New York

         18  City watershed lands while maintaining the controls

         19  necessary to protect water quality.  We also made it

         20  easier to enjoy watershed lands, by putting the

         21  permit application process online.  We hope in the

         22  coming years to increasingly highlight these

         23  recreational activities, and work with the watershed

         24  officials to encourage tourism.

         25                 I am going to skip over the
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          2  description of the legislation and the plan to date,

          3  and focus on the effects that we can specify of the

          4  watershed protection on water quality on page five

          5  of the testimony.

          6                 The most critical measure of the

          7  success of our Watershed Protection Program is how

          8  well it helps us improve water quality and maintain

          9  compliance with objective, health based water

         10  quality criteria created by the Rule.  Compliance

         11  with these criteria is the foundation of New York

         12  City's ability to maintain filtration avoidance for

         13  the Catskill and Delaware systems.

         14                 In March 2006, DEP issued a report

         15  that assessed the impact of our Watershed Protection

         16  Programs on objective measurements of water quality.

         17    This report considered all the data provided by

         18  the 35,000 samples DEP took each year from 300

         19  different sites.  Those samples are subjected to

         20  300,000 analyses a year.  The results of those

         21  analyses show that water from the Catskill and

         22  Delaware basins has been, and continues to be,

         23  excellent.  Most parameters of concern are detected

         24  at very low levels, if at all.

         25                 Our sampling program has verified the
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          2  positive impact of our protection programs, most

          3  notably with respect to phosphorus loading in the

          4  Cannonsville Reservoir Basin. Phosphorous is a

          5  nutrient which tends to degrade water quality by

          6  causing algae blooms.  At Cannonsville, the

          7  phosphorus leading from farms and wastewater

          8  treatment plants upstream had become a serious

          9  concern.

         10                 Through the upgrade of local

         11  wastewater treatment plants, and by instituting

         12  pollution prevention programs at area farms, both of

         13  which were done in conjunction with MOA partnership

         14  programs, phosphorus loadings in Cannonsville have

         15  decreased dramatically.  This was a very significant

         16  milestone in that we were able to track quantitative

         17  improvements in water quality, and correlate them to

         18  specific protection measures.

         19                 Upgrading wastewater treatment plants

         20  in the watershed and controlling agricultural runoff

         21  are just two of the many tools that DEP has used to

         22  reduce known sources of pollution, and to prevent

         23  further degradation of water quality from additional

         24  sources.  The other tools:  Land acquisition and

         25  management; building new sewage treatment plants, in
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          2  addition to plant upgrades; repairing, replacing or

          3  disconnecting failing septic systems; controlling

          4  waterfowl; managing streams, forests and riparian

          5  buffers so they enhance water quality; protecting

          6  wetlands; and carrying out specific programs

          7  developed to control nonpoint source pollution into

          8  the basins east of the Hudson that are connected to

          9  the Catskill or Delaware Aqueducts.  Nonpoint source

         10  pollution occurs when stormwater runoff carries

         11  contaminants into reservoirs and their tributaries.

         12                 Examples of nonpoint source pollution

         13  include road salt and failing septic systems.

         14                 The remainder of my statement is

         15  devoted to a brief discussion of each of these

         16  programs, and I am going to do these in a very

         17  abbreviated way.

         18                 Land Acquisition; for the first time

         19  in decades, the 1997 MOA authorized the City to

         20  begin acquiring and preserving critical undeveloped

         21  land in its watershed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Emily, if I

         23  could just jump in.

         24                 With regard to land acquisition, you

         25  can take your time on that, just trying to
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          2  assimilate that, and it's a particular concern of

          3  mine.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  As of 1997, New

          7  York City owned 36,000 acres of land, or 3.5 percent

          8  of the total acreage, in the Catskill and Delaware

          9  watersheds.

         10                 As of today, New York City had

         11  acquired 62,000 acres in- fee simple or conservation

         12  easement, with another 15,000 acres of farm

         13  easements secured by the Watershed Agricultural

         14  Council.  This represents a tripling of protected

         15  lands since 1997; the majority of these are

         16  considered high quality properties that would have

         17  been otherwise threatened with development.

         18                 Over the next five years, DEP will

         19  solicit or re solicit for acquisition no less than

         20  50,000 acres per year between 2007 and 2012.  We

         21  have available to fund these acquisitions $30

         22  million of the original $250 million allocated in

         23  the MOA, and $23 million of the $50 million

         24   "Supplementary Fund."

         25                 In the event that this $53 million is

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  insufficient to purchase land or easements that are

          3  available for acquisition, the City will make

          4  recommendations to EPA on allocating an additional

          5  $30 million for the period 2007- 2012; and will

          6  consult with EPA regarding the potential need for

          7  any additional monies. Because the State- issued

          8  permit that authorizes New York City to buy

          9  watershed lands expires in 2012, New York City will

         10  apply to New York State for a new water supply

         11  permit to authorize New York City to buy additional

         12  watershed land.

         13                 Assuming that permit is granted, New

         14  York City has already committed to provide an

         15  additional $20 million for land acquisition to

         16  ensure that the program can continue without

         17  interruption.

         18                 I think Walter Mugdan may have said

         19  that more simply than I just did.  But I'm sure we

         20  will come back to this in the questions.

         21                 Managing City- owned Lands; In

         22  cooperation with watershed planning boards and the

         23  Sporting Advisory Committee constituted in the MOA,

         24  DEP has quadrupled the acreage of watershed lands

         25  available for a wider selection of recreational
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          2  uses, including hunting, hiking, bird- watching,

          3  snowshoeing and other uses.  A pilot program for

          4  small game, including turkey and bear hunting, began

          5  in the fall of 2006, and will be expanded to most

          6  hunting areas in 2007.

          7                 In addition, DEP and two Delaware

          8  County snowmobiling clubs have reached agreement to

          9  allow snowmobiling on several City- owned parcels

         10  that abut State lands.

         11                 To facilitate access to, and tracking

         12    of, the permits that authorize use of lands, DEP

         13  has created online access to its permits.

         14                 Upgrades of existing Wastewater

         15  Treatment Plants; forty percent of the wastewater

         16  flow in the Catskill and Delaware watersheds comes

         17  from the City- owned wastewater treatment plants.

         18  The remaining 60 percent comes from 34 non- City-

         19  owned facilities. By 2002, at a cost of $240

         20  million, DEP had completed the upgrade of its six

         21  plants.  As of the end of 2006, approximately 96

         22  percent of the flow from the non- City- owned

         23  facilities has been upgraded.

         24                 As I mentioned earlier, plant

         25  upgrades in the Cannonsville Basin clearly has had a
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          2  positive effect on some measures of water quality.

          3                 Building new wastewater

          4  infrastructure; DEP has funded the construction of

          5  new wastewater facilities in seven watershed

          6  communities.  Four of the seven are completed,

          7  Roxbury, Andes, Windham and Hunter; two more will be

          8  completed by late 2008, Fleischmans and Prattsville.

          9    A third planned facility is slated for completion

         10  in 2010, Phoenicia.  An eighth community,

         11  Boiceville, has been added to the list and project

         12  planning is proceeding in that community.

         13                 Over the next five years, DEP is also

         14  committed to completing the design and construction

         15  of community septic systems in the small communities

         16  of Boiceville, Bloomville, Hamden, Delancey and

         17  Ashland.

         18                 The City will also initiate and

         19  complete design for two additional communities and

         20  initiate design for a third over the course of the

         21  next five years.

         22                 Septic replacement; there are 22,000

         23  residential septic's in the watershed.  Some are

         24  older or prone to failure or not designed and

         25  installed to meet current standards.  DEP has
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          2  already funded the remediation or replacement of

          3  2,300 septic systems that were failing or were in

          4  poor condition.

          5                 DEP is committed to contracting with

          6  its local partner, the Catskill Watershed

          7  Corporation, to fund an additional 300 systems per

          8  year using a set of priorities that targets funding

          9  to the most critical watershed areas.  The five year

         10  cost of this program is estimated at $22 million.

         11                 To incentivize proper maintenance of

         12  septic systems, the CWC will continue to fund 50

         13  percent of the cost of septic pump- outs.

         14                 In the towns of Grand Gorge,

         15  Grahamsville, Margaretville, Pine Hill and

         16  Tannersville, which are served by a city- owned

         17  wastewater treatment plant, DEP will fund the

         18  extension of the sewer system into these towns to

         19  nearby areas where septic's are failing, or likely

         20  to fail.

         21                 Watershed Agricultural Programs;

         22  working through the Watershed Agricultural Council,

         23  DEP funds the development of farm plans and the

         24  implementation of structural and non structural

         25   "best management practices" on watershed farms.
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          2                 Examples of farm BMP's include:

          3  Berm's or barriers that prevent manure from flowing

          4  out of barnyard areas and into watercourses;

          5  vegetated filter strips that buffer the sediment,

          6  nutrients or organic waste that travels from

          7  barnyards of feedlots to streams and watercourses;

          8  fencing, to keep livestock out of wetlands or other

          9  sensitive areas; and, nutrient management systems to

         10  keep nutrient loadings at a level that provides for

         11  maximum crop production but minimal impact on water

         12  quality.

         13                 To date more than 95 percent of the

         14  farms in the watershed are participating in the

         15  program.  Going forward, the primary goals of this

         16  program over the next five years are:

         17                 Maintain a high level of land and

         18  water stewardship by farmers, and continue

         19  participation in the program of actively managed

         20  farmland.

         21                 Re- enroll easements for another ten

         22  to 15 years, where easements are expiring on

         23  agricultural buffer lands obtained via the

         24  Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program.

         25                 For those not familiar with it, CREP
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          2  is a federally subsidized program to encourage

          3  landowners to convert erodible cropland and other

          4  sensitive areas to permanent cover such as grasses

          5  or trees.

          6                 Solicit 200 new acres a year for

          7  agricultural easements under the CREP.

          8                 Support and monitor the maintenance

          9  and operations of BMP's on participating farms; and

         10  solicit the participation of new farms in the Whole

         11  Farm Program, including farms from both east and

         12  west of the Hudson.

         13                 I will just mention the others, and

         14  we can come back to them in the questions.

         15                 The waterfowl management program,

         16  watershed forestry management, which is something

         17  that is coming along very well, the stream

         18  management program, riparian buffer protection,

         19  wetlands protection, and of course, protection in

         20  the East- of- Hudson Basins at West Branch, Cross

         21  River and Croton Falls, and finally, the Kensico

         22  protection programs.

         23                 Because Kensico is the blending

         24  reservoir for water collected in the Catskill and

         25  Delaware systems, Kensico is a critical basin.  To
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          2  achieve the broad goals of reducing nonpoint source

          3  pollution in the Kensico Basin, DEP will focus on

          4  inspecting the existing DEP- constructed BMP's in

          5  the Kensico watershed to ensure they are functioning

          6  well; generating more complete mapping information

          7  which will inform decisions on future stormwater and

          8  dredging projects; and, implementing a septic repair

          9  and sanitary sewer inspection program to reduce the

         10  risk of wastewater discharges to Kensico.

         11                 Finally on the subject of turbidity,

         12  notwithstanding the success of all of these

         13  watershed protection tools, our March 2006

         14  assessment of the effectiveness of our watershed

         15  protection programs showed that natural events, such

         16  as intense rainstorms, can obscure or temporarily

         17  overwhelm the positive effects of our protection

         18  efforts.  Turbidity is a prime example of that.

         19  When washed into streams and reservoirs by intense

         20  rainstorms, the fine, clay- rich soil of the

         21  Catskill Watershed resists settling and has always

         22  contributed to occasional periods of turbidity, or

         23  cloudiness.  This has been the case since the

         24  Catskill system was created.

         25                 Some of the systems' features, such
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          2  as the presence of two basins at Ashokan, were

          3  designed to mitigate the problem caused by

          4  naturally- occurring turbidity.  Because the

          5  sediment particles that create turbidity can impact

          6  water quality, interfere with disinfection, and

          7  provide a medium for growth of harmful bacteria,

          8  state and federal regulators have created turbidity

          9  criteria for waters that are the source for drinking

         10  water supplies.

         11                 Turbidity has become more of a

         12  concern in the Catskill watershed because of the

         13  increasing frequency of intense rainstorms, three in

         14  particular over the past two years in particular.

         15  Because violation of turbidity standards could

         16  jeopardize filtration avoidance, even if all other

         17  programs are successful, DEP has made Catskill

         18  turbidity control a high priority.

         19                 Turbidity in the Catskill system is

         20  usually the result of intense rainstorms that

         21  destabilize streambanks and particularly,

         22  streambeds, introducing glacial clays into the

         23  streams within the Catskill watershed.  Once

         24  suspended in the water, clay particles can take

         25  weeks or months to completely settle out.  When this
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          2  happens, DEP adds alum, a coagulant, to the water

          3  before it enters Kensico Reservoir.  While alum is

          4  harmless to humans, it settles to the floor of the

          5  reservoir, and the accumulation of alum over time

          6  may affect the ecology of that stratum of the

          7  reservoir.  Recent alum permits have required

          8  dredging to remediate the alum.  Studies are

          9  underway to assess the impact of the alum, and to

         10  plan the dredging.

         11                 At the same time, DEP is undertaking

         12  a comprehensive analysis of potential engineering

         13  and structural alternatives to reduce turbidity in

         14  the Catskill system. Detailed engineering and

         15  hydrological studies already conducted have revealed

         16  that contributions to overall Catskill turbidity

         17  from the Esopus Watershed are more significant than

         18  contributions from the Schoharie Watershed.

         19                 That Understanding will help guide us

         20  as we continue to evaluate potential modifications

         21  at the Ashokan Reservoir.  The modifications under

         22  consideration include:  An in- reservoir baffle in

         23  the East Basin; a release structure from the West

         24  Basin; a new East Basin intake; and, increased

         25  storage. By March 31, 2008, DEP will develop a plan,
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          2  subject to state and federal approval, for

          3  implementing any feasible and cost- effective

          4  turbidity control measures identified by the

          5  comprehensive engineering analysis.

          6                 In closing, let me reiterate that DEP

          7  is optimistic that EPA will endorse DEP's Long- Term

          8  Watershed Protection Program, and renew the

          9  Filtration Avoidance Determination for the Catskill

         10  and Delaware systems for another five years.  If DEP

         11  obtains that five- year renewal it will be based on

         12  the dedication of DEP staff, and the collaboration

         13  that DEP has enjoyed with its regulatory agencies

         14  and watershed partners.

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         16  present testimony.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  Commissioner, and I certainly agree with you that in

         19  all of DEP's successes it's certainly built on the

         20  dedication of its staff, with whom I've had the

         21  pleasure to work with for many, many years.

         22                 So, thank you for your statement.

         23                 We're joined by Council Member

         24  Domenic Recchia. It's a pleasure to have Domenic

         25  with us here today.
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          2                 Okay, the Committee has asked this

          3  question before but I feel it's an important

          4  question that needs to be asked again.

          5                 Is the DEP committed to filtration

          6  avoidance for the Catskill/Delaware water supply for

          7  the next 50 years?  We're talking long- term

          8  sustainability here.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  I think that

         10  that is certainly our goal.  We recognize that there

         11  are challenges that we will have to address to be

         12  able to do that, but we feel that it is the more

         13  sustainable way to provide clean drinking water to

         14  the residents of New York City, and the others that

         15  use it.

         16                 So, that is our intent.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  thank you.

         19                 How much would it cost to construct a

         20  filtration plant for the Catskill/Delaware water

         21  supply system?

         22                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Steve, would you

         23  like to address that?

         24                 I always like other people to give

         25  the bad news.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure.

          3                 Steve, if you would just state your

          4  name for the record before you give your statement.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

          6  It's Steven Lawitts.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, you bet.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         10  Currently it's a range of estimates, and the current

         11  range is between $6 and $10 billion for construction

         12  costs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And to operate

         14  and to maintain, and debt service, do you have any

         15   -- okay, let's just see if we can parse this out.

         16                 Do you have a number for the annual

         17  operation and maintenance cost for such a system?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         19  Well again, it would be a range.  It would depend on

         20  how the plant is finally designed, but current

         21  estimates would be at least $100 million a year in

         22  the operating budget.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, and the

         24  annual debt service for such a system, if you have a

         25  number for that?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

          3  Again, it would be a range that would depend on a

          4  number of factors, such as what the construction

          5  costs, primarily what the construction costs would

          6  end up being, interest rates at the time, and a

          7  number of other factors, but the range could easily

          8  be from a half a billion per year, to a billion or

          9  more per year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, the debt

         11  service on that.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         13  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and what

         15  impact would that have on water rates over the first

         16  ten years of the project?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         18  As you know, Mr. Chair, the water rates depend on a

         19  large number of factors, including all of DEP's

         20  other operating costs for the year, interest rates,

         21  what the rest of DEP's capital program would be at

         22  the time, but to put this into perspective, the

         23  current water rates are based on annual revenues of

         24  about $2 billion a year, and so the debt service of

         25  up to a billion dollars a year in the annual
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          2  operating costs of a filtration plant of $100

          3  million or more a year, have to be viewed from the

          4  perspective of the current water revenues which are

          5  targeted at about $2 billion per year.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

          7  you, thank you.

          8                 Thank you, Steve.

          9                 There's another question for the

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 Out of hearing of this Committee on

         12  Intro. 375 of June of last year, you were in

         13  agreement with EPA's statement that land ownership

         14  is the best means of protecting water quality, and

         15  do you still agree with that statement?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Yes, I certainly

         17  think it is a critical and enduring factor.  There

         18  are a couple of others that are also extraordinarily

         19  important, but it is central to the Program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         21                 All of the land in the watershed has

         22  been categorized by priority category, as we all

         23  know, and so some questions based on that.

         24                 So, how much land does the City

         25  currently own or control in the Cat/Del watershed,
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          2  broken down according to priority category?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  I am going to

          4  ask Assistant Commissioner, Dave Warne to address

          5  that.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Of the

          7  land that we've acquired since the acquisition

          8  program started in 1997--

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You need to

         10  state your name for the record.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Oh,

         12  I'm sorry.

         13                 David Warren.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, it's a

         15  pleasure to have you here.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Of the land that we've acquired since

         19  1997, there are essentially five priority categories

         20  within the Cat/Del watershed.

         21                 In Priority Area 1A, we've acquired

         22  approximately 4,800 acres.  In Priority Area 1B,

         23  it's about 12,500 acres, 12,600 acres.  In Priority

         24  Area 2, 9,000 acres.  Priority Area 3, 22,800 acres,

         25  and in Priority Area 4, 27,000 acres.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  I

          4  should just clarify, that those totals do include

          5  the conservation easements purchased by WAC under

          6  the Farm Easement Program.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, right.

          8                 Would you be able to state how much

          9  available land would be left in each of those

         10  categories?  Do you have figures on that?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  I

         12  don't have those figures with me.  We can certainly

         13  provide those though.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, if

         15  you could forward those to the counsel to the

         16  Committee, we'd certainly appreciate that.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:

         18  Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I just

         20  want to  -- we've been fortunate to have both the

         21  EPA here, and you Commissioner, and we're just

         22  trying to reconcile the statements made by the EPA,

         23  and by your statement regarding the amount of money

         24  that has been spent on land acquisition, and how

         25  much is left to spend, and staff has prepared a
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          2  little chart that goes over the statements of the

          3  Understanding of EPA versus your statement.

          4                 In the category of amount spent on

          5  land acquisition per the FAD to date, the EPA had

          6  indicated that it was their belief that about $200

          7  million had been spent of about $300 million that

          8  has been allocated, which was originally $250

          9  million plus the $50 million for the supplemental.

         10  So, $210 million spent so far out of $300 million,

         11  and your statement indicates that $247 million out

         12  of the $300 million.  To further break that down,

         13  it's $220 million of the $250 million, and then $27

         14  million of the $50 million for a total of $247

         15  million out of $300 million.

         16                 So, EPA is saying $210 million out of

         17  $300 million.  Your statement is $247 million out of

         18  $300 million.

         19                 Could you clarify this for us?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  I can

         21  certainly try.

         22                 Let's start with the $250 million.

         23  Of the $250 million that was originally allocated

         24  in`97, the amount spent to date is a little closer

         25  to $220 million, I believe.  We have a slightly more
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          2  up to date number than EPA is working from.  That

          3  includes the acquisition cost, the actual cost, of

          4  purchasing the land, as well as the soft costs

          5  associated with the Program, meaning title searches,

          6  surveys, inspections, appraisals, that kind of work

          7  that's necessary to acquire the land.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  So,

         10  that's $220 million out of the $250 million.

         11                 Of the supplemental fund, the $50

         12  million, several years ago we allocated $7 million

         13  of that to the Watershed Agricultural Council to

         14  support their easement program, and then just last

         15  year, we allocated another $20 million of that to

         16  the Ag Council again for additional easement

         17  acquisition.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, that's $7

         19  million, plus $20 million, $27 million.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:

         21  Correct.  That second allocation, that $20 million

         22  is still in the process of being transferred over to

         23  WAC, so it is currently still within our budget, if

         24  you will.  It's funding that we still retain but we

         25  intend to, and are in the process of making that
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          2  transfer over to WAC.

          3                 So of the $50 million, $7 million has

          4  been transferred over.  There's $47 million

          5  remaining, of which $20 million is earmarked to go

          6  to WAC.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, right,

          8  but once it goes to WAC, is it already committed to

          9  be spent for certain easement activities, or it will

         10  be available for them to us to do easements?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  They

         12  have a number of parcels that they have already

         13  entered into purchase agreements on for easements,

         14  and some of the funding, some of that $20 million

         15  will be used to pay for the parcels already under

         16  contract, as well as some new parcels.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but

         18  we're not seeing those lands, sort of, like

         19  currently reflected in like the control column,

         20  one's that we control, because we haven't done it

         21  yet, right?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:

         23  Correct, correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so once

         25  it's all said and done, they'll be more  --  okay,
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          2  so that's fine.

          3                 Okay and moving down to our next

          4  category, again, doing this reconciliation here,

          5  using the EPA Understanding, there would be about

          6  $90 million left, that would still be available, and

          7  DEP's statement is that there would be $53 million,

          8  and your statement was that if the $53 million is

          9  insufficient, the City will make recommendations to,

         10  or will take steps for an additional $30 million or

         11   --  does this make any sense?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Yes,

         13  our commitment is part of the five- year plan was to

         14  add $30 million for acquisition during the coming

         15  five year period, 2007 to 2012.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and EPA

         17  said $50 million would be the additional commitment?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Right,

         19  there's an additional $20 million that the City has

         20  committed to--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But that's

         22  beyond 2012, right?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:

         24  Correct, that would be used a bridge funding,

         25  presuming that we are successful in securing a FAD
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          2  for beyond 2012.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But we're

          4  talking over the next five years.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Excuse

          6  me?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We're talking

          8  over the next five years to make--

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So we're kind

         11  of like not counting that, you know.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:

         13  Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So where this

         15  is all going is that, and again, this is been a lot

         16  for us to assimilate just in the last couple of

         17  moments here, that the thrust of what we're hearing

         18  from EPA and from DEP is that the land acquisition

         19  will, essentially, continue apace for what it's been

         20  for the last ten years, but it seems that if you

         21  have the $53 million, which is currently available,

         22  plus the $30 million for a total of $83 million,

         23  over the next five years--

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  But I

         25  would suggest adding to that the $20 million that

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  will be allocated to WAC.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But that's

          4  after  --  that's post- 2012, so why would we add it

          5  now?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  No,

          7  no, I'm sorry.

          8                 I'm talking about the $20 million

          9  from the supplemental fund that we've already

         10  committed to provide to WAC that has not been

         11  transferred to them yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, that would

         13  be an additional $20 million?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we're

         16  doing our checkbook here.  Sensitive, sensitive

         17  stuff here.  I could have sworn that new suit didn't

         18  cost any where near that.  I had no idea that it was

         19  going to--

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  It was that

         21  parcel near Kensico.

         22                 I think that the total amount of

         23  money is the same, and the question is where we are

         24  on the continue of spending that money, and perhaps

         25  we have moved along with some parcels since we, sort
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          2  of, set the dollars with EPA, but I think the

          3  critical part of this is that both EPA and we, I

          4  think, said in our statement, as has been the case

          5  in the past, that if we need more money they will

          6  expect us to put more money if we reach that point,

          7  and that we are totally willing to do that, if we

          8  reach that point, as has happened in the past when

          9  we needed supplemental funds to continue making our

         10  purchases.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But let me say

         12  the following.

         13                 I just don't see from the numbers

         14  that DEP has put forward an ability to continue the

         15  land acquisition at the pace that it's currently

         16  going.  I don't see how the numbers add up because

         17  you've been doing $25 million a year.

         18                 So, to put it in question form, how

         19  much does DEP intend to spend per year for the next

         20  five years, and what does DEP think that will yield

         21  in terms of actual acquisition per year, for the

         22  next five years?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  As the

         24  Commissioner said as part of her testimony, I think

         25  we intend that the program will continue at the same
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          2  pace--

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, no, no, no,

          4  no, no, no.              Listen very carefully,

          5  okay?

          6                 How much does DEP expect to spend per

          7  year for the next five years, and what does DEP

          8  believe that will yield in acreage per year for the

          9  next five years?

         10                 That's the question I want answered.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Right,

         12  and the pace that we've been executing the program

         13  at recently, has been approximately $22 million a

         14  year.

         15                 So, we're projecting something in

         16  that range of $20- $22 million per year, and in the

         17  last five years, we've acquired a range between

         18  7,000 acres a year to 9,500 acres a year, and we're

         19  expecting to continue to acquire within that range.

         20                 So over the five year period, we're

         21  talking about expenditures in range of $100- $105

         22  million, and depending on where we are in the range

         23  of acquisitions, that would be 35,000 acres to

         24  47,500 if my math is correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,
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          2  okay.

          3                 So the range of funds for the year,

          4  the $22- $24 million per year is in the budget now?

          5  It's allocated now?  The funds there are there?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Yes

          7  they are.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, now EPA

          9  again, playing one off against the other, they

         10  believe that due to inflation the, again, I don't

         11  want to misinterpret their statement, and if I'm

         12  doing so, I apologize, but based on the math that

         13  they kind of put forward, it looks like they're

         14  looking in the range of $28 million per year.

         15                 When you say that this is a new day,

         16  and it's 2007, and it might cost more money, what's

         17  your response to EPA believing it's going to take

         18  $28 million to do this, and DEP having a number less

         19  than that to accomplish the same thing?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Well I think

         21  that at this point in the process, we have submitted

         22  a proposal which they are reviewing.

         23                 I think that in our discussions we

         24  both thought that we were pretty much in the same

         25  place, if in the way we have done our calculations
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          2  there's a disparity, I'm quite sure that that is

          3  going to get resolved.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so our

          5  hearing is serving a real purpose here.  So, that's

          6  a good thing, that's a good thing.

          7                 Okay, the DEP's 2006 Program, which

          8  it put forward to the EPA states that "the DEP

          9  intends to allocate funds for continuation of the

         10  Land Acq. Program, unless through the mid course

         11  review process the primacy agency or DEP concludes

         12  that there are substantial impediments to continue

         13  the filtration avoidance after 2012."

         14                 The question is, why would DEP

         15  conclude that there are the possibility of

         16  substantial impediments?

         17                 Can the DEP then unilaterally

         18  terminate the FAD, and what would constitute a

         19  substantial impediment according to DEP?

         20                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Well, I'll do

         21  the first half, which is, I think, some of the

         22  things that might constitute  -- I think they're

         23  almost by definition, unknowns at this point.

         24                 It might be significant effects of

         25  climate change. It might be evolving regulations of
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          2  which we're not yet aware. It could be rising costs

          3  that made it not a cost effective approach,

          4  although, having heard the earlier numbers, that

          5  one's particularly alarming to speculate on, but I

          6  will let Mark Hoffer, who's DEP's counsel address

          7  whether or not we can unilaterally withdraw.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Mark, hi,

          9  greetings, nice to see you.

         10                 MR. HOFFER:  Good morning, good

         11  morning, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  State your name

         13  for the record.

         14                 MR. HOFFER:  Certainly, my name is

         15  Mark Hoffer.  I am the General Counsel of DEP.

         16                 The answer is this.  While it is

         17  certainly our hope, and our expectation, and our

         18  intent to continue pursuing filtration avoidance

         19  over the long- term, as the Commissioner has already

         20  indicated, were there to be some dramatic

         21  intervening change, such as a change in law or

         22  regulation that might, if standards are tightened

         23  sufficiently, make is extremely difficult for the

         24  City, extremely expensive for the City to continue,

         25  the FAD is not a contract as such, it is a
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          2  determination or an administrative ruling by EPA

          3  that if the City satisfies a series of conditions

          4  and requirements, is it entitled to avoid filtration

          5  if the City concludes that is cannot do so.

          6                 We will certainly communicate it to

          7  our regulatory partners.  I assume they would very

          8  shortly thereafter be talking to us about an

          9  enforceable order or agreement to put a filtration

         10  facility into place.  But, this is not a contract

         11  that one terminates as such.  It would simply be a

         12  change in strategy or course that we would need to

         13  inform our regulators about, and obviously, discuss

         14  and negotiate what the next steps would be.        But

         15  it is not a binding commitment on the part of the

         16  City to avoid filtration for perpetuity.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         18  Thank you, Mark. I appreciate that.

         19                 Okay, we've reached the last

         20  question, okay.

         21                 At our June 2006 hearing, there was a

         22  Mr. O'Brien of the Watershed Agricultural Council

         23  who testified before this Committee that the WAC, as

         24  of June 2006 had 22,500 acres in application from

         25  willing sellers in the Cat/Del watershed already
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          2  prioritized on the best farmland soils and the most

          3  sensitive hydrological features, increased and

          4  extended funding is what would be needed to protect

          5  this space, and that it would cost approximately $64

          6  million to purchase easements on this acreage over a

          7  six year period, and DEP's statement at the time  --

          8    and DEP's statement today was that $20 million was

          9  allocated last year for the WAC Program, and so the

         10  question would be, what is DEP's posture about the

         11  additional $44 million that the WAC says it needs to

         12  acquire this land?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  First

         14  of all, let me just say, we are very pleased to be

         15  working with WAC on the easement program.  They have

         16  been very successful in securing some sensitive

         17  farmland, and there's been a lot of interest in the

         18  farm community for the easement program.

         19                 The total commitment to WAC easement

         20  acquisition thus far, has been $47 million.  That

         21  includes $20 million out of the original $250

         22  million.  It includes $7 million from the

         23  supplemental fund, which I mentioned a few moments

         24  ago had been allocated a few years ago, and it

         25  includes the $20 million that I mentioned a few

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  minutes ago that is in the process of being

          3  allocated over to WAC.

          4                 We think that total funding is

          5  sufficient to continue that program at a very active

          6  level in the coming years, and we are committed to

          7  continuing to review--

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but

          9  let's just talk about the  --  are you aware of this

         10  position of WAC that they have or had 22,500 acres

         11  in application from willing sellers, and that it

         12  would cost $64 million  --  does this all sound

         13  familiar?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  Of

         15  course, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and is it

         17  DEP's intention to acquire the 22,500 acres this

         18  way, or is it not their intention to do so?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WARNE:  As I

         20  said, we are in regular discussions with WAC on the

         21  pace of their easement program.

         22                 The 22,500 acres in application, is

         23  really just an expression of interest in the

         24  easement program by owners of that number of acres.

         25  Some of those acres may or may not ultimately end up
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          2  under contract, but we are  --  next year we will be

          3  negotiating our next contract with WAC for the

          4  continuation of the overall farm program, and we'll

          5  be evaluating the pace of the easement acquisition

          6  program as part of that in allocating an appropriate

          7  level of funding.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

          9  you, thank you.

         10                 Again, this is not a question, but I

         11  understand that in the  --  the DEP capital budget,

         12  in the new ten- year plan is going to have in it

         13  some tremendous, tremendous number, which I am

         14  certainly not necessarily opposed to, but scores of

         15  billions of dollars and some big numbers we are

         16  hearing, and I guess from my perspective, although

         17  so many good things have been accomplished and will

         18  continue to be accomplished with DEP capital

         19  funding.  It is difficult for this Committee to

         20  believe that there is better use for DEP capital

         21  funds than preserving watershed lands, and it would

         22  be, I think, it would have a real irony to it if the

         23  total number of funds that were set aside for

         24  purchasing watershed lands amounted to just like a

         25  fraction of like one percent of like the DEP's new
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          2  ten- year capital plan and so that is just a ratio

          3  that is going to resonate with us, and so I just

          4  want to, sort of, put that out there as something

          5  that is one of our real interests and our

          6  consideration of the DEP capital budget.

          7                 So, there you have it, and so, once

          8  again, I want to thank you for being here,

          9  Commissioner.  I want to thank you and your team for

         10  doing such a  --  for doing all that you do to

         11  preserve that watershed in perpetuity.

         12                 We appreciate your being here today.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman, and I really want to be clear that our

         15  intent is not to constrain this Program by squeezing

         16  the financial resources.  Obviously, the stakes are

         17  very high in terms of maintaining the Program, and

         18  our intent is to fund it at the rate at which it is

         19  able to grow, and so, I hope that at the end of the

         20  day we will all feel comfortable that we're in the

         21  right place with that.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Comfort is a

         24  good thing, comfort is a good thing, I'm for that.

         25  I'm for that, okay?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          4  thank you, Emily.

          5                 Our next witness, James Tierney of

          6  the Office of Attorney General, Andrew Cuomo.

          7                 Okay James, they're swearing you in.

          8  Are you ready?

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes, sir.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  In the

         11  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

         12  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and

         13  nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  I do.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  James, I want

         17  to say it was good to see you January 1st up in

         18  Albany.  It was fun.  We're having little noshes up

         19  there in the Capitol that was great.

         20                 We look forward to your statement

         21  today.

         22                 James, if you would just state your

         23  name for the record, and proceed with your

         24  statement, we'd appreciate that.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes, Chairman Gennaro.
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          2                 My name if Jim Tierney, and I want to

          3  first thank you and for your work, the work of your

          4  staff, the work of the members of your committee.

          5  It's terrific to be here today, and thank you for

          6  having us.

          7                 As you know, I serve as the Watershed

          8  Inspector General.  Now, that's a position that is a

          9  joint appointment of the Governor and the Attorney

         10  General within the Attorney General's Office, and I

         11  see many great people that I've met over the years

         12  in this room, all here understand the meaning  --

         13  understand the sensitivity of a water supply that is

         14  unfiltered. That means that the only treatment that

         15  the water receives between reservoir and faucet, for

         16  City residents, is disinfection with chlorine today.

         17    This means that the public health, our first

         18  priority, is best protected by identifying and

         19  aggressively eliminating actual or threatened

         20  sources of pollution up in the Watershed.

         21                 Filtration avoidance makes terrific

         22  fiscal sense. The numbers that were discussed today

         23  were even higher than my rough but conservative

         24  estimate.  The principle, bond interest,

         25  operational, staffing and property tax costs
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          2  associated with a conservatively priced $6 billion

          3  drinking water filtration plant would likely exceed

          4  $500 million each year.

          5                 I checked in with Westchester County,

          6  and the property taxes on this plant alone would be

          7  $100 million a year at the selected site.

          8                 Now, I'd like to say that the New

          9  York City Department of Environmental Protection has

         10  made good, even excellent, progress towards

         11  establishing programs to control pollutants.

         12                 While a great deal of work remains, I

         13  am glad to be able to strongly recommend that EPA

         14  grant DEP a continued waiver from the general

         15  filtration requirement.

         16                 My congratulations on this important

         17  achievement to DEP Commissioner Lloyd and key

         18  members of her staff, including Deputy Commissioner,

         19  Paul Rush, General Counsel Mark Hoffer, and

         20  Assistant Commissioner Dave Warne, who's been in the

         21  thick of this all along.

         22                 I'd like to direct your attention to

         23  two key priority items in getting to a few other

         24  things.

         25                 The first is Catskill System

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  turbidity.  EPA has stated that turbidity flowing

          3  from the Catskill System, which includes the Ashokan

          4  and Schoharie reservoirs, is the single largest

          5  threat to long- term filtration avoidance.  Our

          6  office agrees wholeheartedly with this technical

          7  assessment.

          8                 The significance of the turbidity

          9  problem is highlighted by New York City's recent

         10  emergency use of the flocculent alum to reduce

         11  turbidity levels in water flowing from the Ashokan

         12  Reservoir.  DEP had to inject alum into the Catskill

         13  Aqueduct at an average rate of 24,000 pounds per

         14  day, for over eight months, during the 2005 to 2006

         15  period, resulting in over five million pounds of

         16  alum flocc, we'll call it, being deposited on the

         17  bottom of the Kensico Reservoir.

         18                 Without "emergency" alum use, over

         19  eight million consumers of Catskill/Delaware water

         20  would have been exposed to an increased risk of

         21  disease from water- borne pathogens.  The recent use

         22  of alum was critical to maintaining turbidity levels

         23  below five NTU's in water entering the distribution

         24  system, as required by drinking water regulations

         25  and triggered the filtration requirement.
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          2  Importantly, the use of alum cannot be relied on to

          3  address turbidity on a regular basis, as EPA

          4  unequivocally stated in its 2002 FAD that alum

          5  treatments are not an appropriate way to comply with

          6  filtration avoidance regulations.

          7                 The sensitivity of the Ashokan and

          8  the Schoharie Reservoirs is underscored by their

          9  formal designation by State DEC as "impaired" for

         10  suspended sediment or turbidity.  The quality of the

         11  water in these reservoirs violates "water quality

         12  standards" and therefore, violates state and federal

         13  law.  The Ashokan is also a "terminal" reservoir,

         14  one whose water can be, and has been, piped directly

         15  into the drinking water distribution system.

         16  Detailed assessments of the Ashokan and Schoharie

         17  Basins undertaken by our office demonstrate that

         18  most of the Catskill System is characterized by

         19  steep slopes, highly erodible clay soils, intense

         20  precipitation events, and limited wetland

         21  buffers  --  attributes that make this system highly

         22  sensitive to disturbances from various land use

         23  activities.

         24                 Heightened efforts, through FAD

         25  programs, to adequately mitigate Catskill System
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          2  turbidity must be a central priority.

          3                 Now, I won't go through the

          4  engineering controls that were discusses, I think,

          5  adequately before, but I wholeheartedly support them

          6  and endorse DEP's efforts, but I do believe that as

          7  a key element within the filtration avoidance

          8  determination, there needs to be a heightened

          9  application of FAD programs, particularly to the

         10  Catskill System.

         11                 I also think it's worth emphasizing

         12  as part of that, that not only the completion of

         13  these things we're termed "stream management plans"

         14  need to be completed, but the focus needs to be on

         15  actual implementation.  That's difficult, and that's

         16  hard to do.  It will require tremendous resources to

         17  get these plans implemented, but it will be well

         18  worth it, given the overall costs and the protection

         19  of public health.

         20                 Now, I do want to say one thing with

         21  respect to all these engineering controls in the

         22  Ashokan Basin that were discussed by Commissioner

         23  Lloyd.

         24                 There's a highly important

         25  discussion, we'll call it that, or debate that's

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  underway with respect to the methodology that was

          3  employed to model sediment transport and turbidity

          4  within the waters of the Catskill System.  This

          5  model serves as the basis for a whole host of

          6  critical engineering and operational decisions, and

          7  in both the Ashokan and Schoharie Reservoirs,

          8  including a possible multi- level intake structure

          9  at the Schoharie.

         10                 We are working hard with our partners

         11  at DEP to make sure that there is high technical

         12  confidence in this important model, and those

         13  discussions are ongoing.

         14                 But I want to get to the next thing,

         15  which I think has been the key focus of a lot of

         16  your questions today, Chairman Gennaro, which is

         17  land acquisition.  Now, that land acquisition

         18  program under the willing seller/willing buyer

         19  protocol provided by the 1997 Memorandum of

         20  Agreement, needs to be expanded and enhanced beyond

         21  the already significant program operated by DEP.

         22                 New York City, I would recommend,

         23  should set an achievable goal of protecting 45

         24  percent of the lands in the Catskill/Delaware

         25  watershed within ten years.  There's approximately a
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          2  million acres in this area, I think you should get

          3  to about 450,000 protected.  Now, this would be mean

          4  a non binding, I do want to emphasize non- binding

          5  target for acquisition in- fee or by conservation

          6  easements of approximately 15,000 acres each year

          7  for the next ten years.

          8                 Such an effort would allow New York

          9  to catch up with Boston, we always want to be better

         10  than Boston, which owns nearly 50 percent of the

         11  watershed that provides its unfiltered drinking

         12  water supply.  In contrast, only 30 percent of the

         13  Catskill/Delaware Watershed is protected by

         14  ownership today.

         15                 Outside of New York and Boston, all

         16  other major watersheds that supply unfiltered water

         17  are completely owned by the respective municipality.

         18    It is critical that significant funds be

         19   "sequestered," and I use that word very, very

         20  specifically so that the money is actually

         21  available, to support continued land acquisition

         22  efforts.  The original sequestered amount of $300

         23  million provided in the 1997 MOA and 1997 FAD, due

         24  to inflation, could reasonably be matched by an

         25  additional $400 million commitment over the next ten
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          2  years, ten years.

          3                 Other additional recommendations on

          4  this front include, prioritize the Catskill System

          5  for land acquisition. Given it extraordinarily, and

          6  I do mean its extraordinary sensitivity, land

          7  acquisition efforts should be amplified dramatically

          8  in the Catskill System.

          9                 Employ the Land Trusts, please.

         10  Finally employ the Land Trusts to the full

         11  abilities.  The use of Land Trust to acquire land

         12  must be expanded substantially.  This is no slight,

         13  and I really, sincerely mean that, to the fine land

         14  acquisition staff at DEP, but for many complex

         15  reasons that I won't get into today, land owners in

         16  the Watershed are often reticent about entering into

         17  acquisition agreements with DEP.

         18                 The State of New York, in its

         19  acquisition program, for example, has benefitted

         20  tremendously from joint efforts with the highly

         21  sophisticated and talented Land Trusts that operate

         22  extensively in New York.  My strong sense is that if

         23  these Land Trusts, if provided with access to a

         24  significant sum of funds, say $50 to $100 million,

         25  they would be able to secure significant
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          2  acquisitions, additional acquisitions.

          3                 Now, I'd also enhance the Watershed

          4  Agricultural Council efforts, and I applaud your

          5  questions along these lines, Chairman Gennaro.

          6                 The Watershed Agricultural Council's

          7  conservation easement program for farms should be

          8  fully funded.  There are already over 20,000 acres

          9  of additional farm land "in line," and I do mean

         10  they actually compete to see who gets to be first to

         11  get a conservation easement, these are very serious

         12  requests by farmers for land acquisition, with many

         13  more acres likely to be available.  Money to allow

         14  these acquisitions and others to go forward has not

         15  yet been made available by DEP, despite EPA having

         16  directed DEP  --  this is the $20 million figure  --

         17  directly DEP to do so in December of 2005.  They're

         18  waiting for those monies, we'd really like to see

         19  them arrive.  We don't like to see any of these

         20  farms lost to somebody else in the meanwhile. WAC

         21  should also be allowed to obtain forestry easements,

         22  wherein, return for protecting the land, and

         23  implementing a silver culture plan, you get a

         24  conservation easement.

         25                 This program also should be fully
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          2  funded.  There are some 90,000 acres in the

          3  Catskill/Delaware System that are subject of

          4  voluntary forestry management plans.  Sometimes

          5  people implement voluntary management plan,

          6  sometimes they don't.  If there's a conservation

          7  easement on the property, implementation is a

          8  requirement.

          9                 Now, these lands it is my

         10  understanding, are exceedingly good candidates for

         11  conservation easements, and that could go a long way

         12  towards this ten- year, 150,000 acre goal that I

         13  talked about.

         14                 Now, the FAD land acquisition program

         15  should be expanded to include all the reservoirs

         16  that can contribute to an unfiltered drinking water

         17  supply.

         18                 EPA and DEP have done a tremendous

         19  job of expanding the numerous FAD programs into

         20  certain basins in the East- of- Hudson, but they

         21  haven't yet committed to expanding it with respect

         22  to acquisition.  The FAD land acquisition program

         23  should be expanded to include the Cross River, over

         24  in the East- of- Hudson.  Include the Croton Falls,

         25  include the Middle Branch which flows into the
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          2  Croton Falls, and include Lake Gilead, which also

          3  flows into the Croton Falls.

          4                 I think this program together would

          5  allow for the type of "lock- in" of long- term

          6  filtration avoidance that we're hoping to make.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jim, if I could

          8  just jump in for a second.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Of course.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I was going to

         11  save my questions for the end, I just don't want to

         12  loose my train of thought here.

         13                 Regarding these East- of- Hudson

         14  basins, now these are basins that ultimately have

         15  impact on the Kensico or something?  Is that why we

         16  have--

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  Under certain

         18  conditions, these basins can be pumped into one of

         19  the aqueducts, I believe it's the Delaware Aqueduct,

         20  and so then it would go in as part of an unfiltered

         21  water supply.

         22                 Now, DEP's done a terrific job of it

         23  recently, over the last FAD, of expanding protection

         24  programs in here.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  But I think it would

          3  make terrific sense to expand the land acquisition

          4  program.  These areas are all  --  they're in

          5  Westchester and Putnam County, and the land here is

          6  very expensive.  So, having money available,

          7  actually sequestered, is useful here.

          8                 As you know, I think and correct  me

          9  if I'm wrong, I believe that  --  just to give you

         10  some sense of how expensive the Kensico property is,

         11  I believe New York City made an $8 million offer on

         12  a nine acre parcel of property and were turned down.

         13    And may have even be $9 million on an eight acre

         14  parcel, I'm not sure but that's the type of the

         15  scope of the money that's involved.

         16                 So as you said, if a significant

         17  chunk of land becomes available in the Kensico,

         18  there needs to be extremely significant amounts of

         19  money available to jump on it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         21  you, thank you.

         22                 Please continue.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay, thank you.

         24                 Now, the East- of- Hudson  --  just a

         25  few other things to go through.  The East- of-
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          2  Hudson polluted runoff continues to be an important

          3  priority.

          4                 Now, that's some nine reservoirs in

          5  the East- of- Hudson portion of the Watershed have

          6  been formally designated as impaired due to excess

          7  levels of phosphorus, mostly from polluted runoff.

          8                 This long- standing problem can and

          9  should be solved through coordinated and cooperative

         10  effort of the State, City, Counties and Towns.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Would these

         12  reservoirs have any impact on the Cat/Del system?

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Some would, and some

         14  wouldn't, it's because of them  --  the Cat/Del

         15  system is East-of-Hudson, some isn't. But the

         16  proposal that we have is that a lot of the work  --

         17  we know what to do, but it's not getting done.

         18  There's sort of a  --  there's a problem.  It's not

         19  at all DEP's fault, there's a lot of issues here in

         20  coordinating stormwater  -- polluted runoff control

         21  programs.

         22                 One thing that I'd like to recommend

         23  for your consideration, and of course everybody

         24  else's, is the creation of a public benefit

         25  corporation, similar in nature to the Catskill
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          2  Watershed Corporation that would coordinate these

          3  efforts.  Sort of a joint venture between the towns

          4  to try to pull these things together, pull in New

          5  York City DEP funds of course, more State funds

          6  through joint effort, and Putnam County and

          7  Westchester County funds, and state grants on top of

          8  it.

          9                 Right now, the program would likely

         10  be fairly unworkable.  There are 17 separate

         11  municipalities.  Some it would be fair to say are

         12  flailing around trying to figure out how to address

         13  polluted runoff.  Some are doing an okay job.

         14                 Where we need to be to get these

         15  reservoirs in compliance with state law at just a

         16  minimum level required under state law, is doable,

         17  but we don't have anybody doing it.

         18                 The biggest place where we could seek

         19  dramatic advancements here would be in the retrofit

         20  of stormwaters on existing parking lots and the

         21  like.  You can get literally kilograms of phosphorus

         22  removed from a reservoir basin at key times, if you

         23  have properly functioning basins.

         24                 So, I'd recommend that, and I like

         25  the idea of that's been eluded to in the FAD, and
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          2  sometime that's sort of a piece of work that we have

          3  to do to develop and see whether we can bring it to

          4  fruition.

          5                 Also, enforcement and SEQRA review, I

          6  want to give a real kudo on this to DEP and others,

          7  and DEC.  Efforts to ensure compliance with sewage

          8  treatment plant regulations and storm water

          9  requirements are going very well.

         10                 In fact, it's a model of how it

         11  should be done in New York State and the country.

         12  The number and intensity of violations has dropped

         13  off substantially over the past years.

         14                 In addition, our office and New York

         15  City DEP has developed programs to review

         16  development projects under the State Environmental

         17  Quality Review Act to avoid or mitigate impacts of

         18  new development on water quality.

         19                 Previous FAD's have encouraged this

         20  important effort, EPA's to be congratulated in doing

         21  that, this serves as a major bulwark against ill-

         22  thought sprawl development.  DEP needs to assure

         23  that adequate technical staffers are available to

         24  continue to undertake this time intensive activity.

         25                 Finally, partnership, it is a very
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          2  important element of this whole program.  The spirit

          3  of partnership was embodied in DEP's extensive

          4  efforts to assist the victims of recent record

          5  floods in the Delaware County portion of the

          6  Watershed, and beyond.  We commend these fine

          7  efforts.  This important partnership would be

          8  furthered, and the sometimes hostile relations

          9  reduced, by the following three steps.

         10                 DEP should allow hunting, fishing,

         11  and hiking to proceed on land it has acquired in the

         12  Watershed under the same rules employed by the State

         13  of New York.  There would be no adverse impact on

         14  water quality, with the exception that these

         15  programs should be identical, with the exceptions

         16  necessary to protect security areas around the

         17  reservoirs, bar camping, barring ATV use and barring

         18  snow mobiles.

         19                 Secondly would be a transparent and

         20  comprehensive dam inspection assurance effort, I

         21  think, well under way, should be adopted that

         22  involves and reassures the local community.

         23                 Develop operational protocols to

         24  create empty space in the reservoirs, consistent

         25  with water quantity needs, so that more storm surges
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          2  may be contained in the reservoirs to reduce the

          3  often significant flooding that occurs downstream of

          4  reservoir dams, and upstream too, for that matter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  And that concludes my

          7  testimony.  I can answer any questions you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Jim.

          9    Yes, I just want to collect my thoughts for your

         10  questions here.

         11                 Okay Jim, with regard to this process

         12  for doing the FAD and going forward, we heard from

         13  EPA or we heard from DEP, what is your involvement

         14  in the development of the FAD?

         15                 How are you directly engaged in that

         16  process in your position as watershed inspector

         17  general?

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  That's interesting,

         19  when it comes to the actual development of the FAD,

         20  I'm for the most part kept outside of the process.

         21  That's why I tend to view the DEP's release of its

         22  Watershed Protection Plan, and the EPA's draft FAD

         23  as the beginning of the conversation.  I'm not at

         24  the table over the past year developing these

         25  programs.
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          2                 I do plan on developing very

          3  specific, as I have in the past, very detailed

          4  comments, perhaps even program by program, about

          5  what I would recommend to have done.  I was

          6  certainly planning on sending it to you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  And the Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  But I think the key

         11  thing here is that we need to  --  I think it's

         12  important, at least from my perspective, to say that

         13  we're at the beginning of discussions for many of

         14  us, as opposed to being delivered something that we

         15  just need to take.

         16                 There needs to be flexibility to

         17  accept new ideas, critiques, and incorporate it into

         18  the program, and indeed, I think the way it is set

         19  up, is that can happen all along, but as you know,

         20  getting this done once every five years is a ton or

         21  work.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  And once it's set in

         24  the FAD, it's a difficult process to get the

         25  flexibility to have programs changed over time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, and I'd

          3  like to compliment you on your, sort of, vision for

          4  land acquisition and we appreciate and applaud that,

          5  and we notice that you're, sort of, scope of what

          6  your vision is for land acquisition is more

          7  expansive than that which was put forward by the EPA

          8  and DEP.

          9                 Anything you'd care to say about

         10  that?

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, I have one

         12  interesting example of that.

         13                 There's some rough, and I do believe

         14  it's very rough, and informal estimates of what it

         15  would cost to cover  -- build literally a cement

         16  cover over the Hillview Reservoir, the 96 acre

         17  Hillview Reservoir, it's a balancing reservoir in

         18  Yonkers.  The estimates are as high as $400 million

         19  a year, I mean $400 million in capital costs.  Four-

         20  hundred million dollars, and from my understanding

         21  this is required under a new rule issued by EPA.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Are they going

         23  to do the cover?

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, at this point I

         25  know New York City has sued in federal court to try
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          2  and block it, that's a tough suit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Not to do the

          4  cover?

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Not to have to do the

          6  cover, or to change the rule to allow for a variance

          7  where it's not necessary.               The original

          8  rule had that variance in here. Somewhere along the

          9  lines, that got taken out right toward the end of

         10  the process.

         11                 DEP is a clear candidate for a

         12  variance.  They've managed to get rid of birds on

         13  the reservoir, they've strung wires over it and

         14  birds don't land on it.  The only pathogen pathway

         15  through this huge basin is maybe bird dropping's of

         16  something flying overhead.  Insubstantial, not to be

         17  worried about, certainly not a $400 million or $100

         18  million problem.

         19                 Now, take that $400 million and do it

         20  as you propose.  You're talking about the trade off

         21  between capital work, put it into preserving and

         22  protecting the Catskill System. That locks in not

         23  only the quality of the Catskill System, but I think

         24  in many ways could work to lock in filtration

         25  avoidance over time, and if building this plant

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  could be as we've heard today, as much as a $1

          3  billion cost, when you have revenues of $2 billion

          4  for the entire system right now.  That's making

          5  rates go up by 33 percent right there.  It's

          6  astonishing.

          7                 So, where we put money and I would

          8   --  what we prioritize is important, and I'd flag

          9  this Hillview cover as something that really needs

         10  to be explored with EPA as a type of thing  --  is

         11  this a cost that we have to put on the backs of rate

         12  payers versus others where it would be a very high

         13  priority?

         14  And save the money in the long- term, frankly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  thank you, Jim. Certainly we're going to be

         17  consistent with the Mayor's effort to create a long-

         18  term, sustainable city.

         19                 As I mentioned in my statement to the

         20  DEP, we're going to have a close watch over that

         21  ratio of how much of the City's long- term capital

         22  budget is going to be dedicated to land acquisition,

         23  and if it's a fraction of one percent, it's just  --

         24  I just don't think that dog's going to hunt.

         25                 Ordinarily, I would love to ask you a
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          2  lot more questions, but we have more witnesses.

          3                 We have to surrender the room at one

          4  o'clock, and were you planning on staying for the

          5  rest of the hearing?

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes, I was.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so we

          8  should speak afterwards because there's certainly

          9  going to be close collaboration with us, and thank

         10  you, Jim, I appreciate that.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I'll talk to

         13  you after the hearing.

         14                 The next panel, we have Eric

         15  Goldstein of the National Resources Defense Council,

         16  Cathleen Breen of NYPIRG, and NYPIRG let us say et

         17  al, Christopher Elliman of the Open Space Institute,

         18  and Paul Mankiewicz of the Gaia Institute.

         19                 We do apologize at this point for

         20  having to put people on the clock.  It is absolutely

         21  necessary that we do that in order to hear everyone.

         22    You know, Jim came all the way from Albany so we

         23  wanted to hear him.

         24                 I just have to excuse myself for

         25  about 60 seconds. While I'm gone, Donna will swear
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          2  in the new panel. I want to give a shout out to my

          3  good friend Bill Harding who's hear from the WPPC,

          4  good to see you Bill.

          5                 I neglected to mention Veronica

          6  McNeil from the Finance Division who is here with us

          7  as well.

          8                 Donna will swear the panel in, and

          9  I'll be right back, and then we'll go at that point.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         11  raise your right hand.

         12                 In the testimony that you are about

         13  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         14  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MR. ELLIMAN:  I do.

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I do.

         17                 MS. BREEN:  I do.

         18                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, okay,

         21  everyone's duly sworn, right?  Okay, good.

         22                 MR. ELLIMAN:  Mr. Chairman, my name

         23  is Kim Elliman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         25                 MR. ELLIMAN:  And I'm going to have
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          2  to run off so if my colleagues would kindly let me

          3  go first.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, thank

          5  you.

          6                 I mean, I thank them for being such

          7  good sports.

          8                 MR. ELLIMAN:  Yes, save the best for

          9  last.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         11                 MR. ELLIMAN:  My name is Kim Elliman.

         12  I am the CEO of the Open Space Institute.

         13                 OSI is a New York-based land

         14  conservation organization land trust that has, over

         15  25 years, protected approximately 100,000 acres in

         16  New York State, about one-third of that in the

         17  Catskills and the balance in the Hudson Valley.

         18                 Outside New York, OSI has partnered

         19  with other agencies to protect another 1.5 million

         20  acres.  All told, we have participated in over 600

         21  transactions worth in excess of $650 million, half

         22  of that in New York State.

         23                 OSI has long been involved in the

         24  region of New York City's watershed for close to 30

         25  years, and we participated in the negotiations of a
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          2  decade ago that led to the watershed agreement, of

          3  which OSI is a signatory.

          4                 As you might expect, from the

          5  perspective, nothing is more important than a

          6  continuation of a strong land acquisition and

          7  easement program to ensure filtration avoidance, and

          8  we endorse, much as Mr. Tierney did, a long- term

          9  perspective for land conservation and acquisition

         10  funding of close to $40 million per year.

         11                 Over our track record, we have seen

         12  that it takes considerable time to conserve

         13  meaningful amounts of land.  One lesson of our work,

         14  I think again as some of the prior testimony has

         15  eluded to, is land is getting both more difficult

         16  and more expensive to protect.  Land has become more

         17  valuable because there's more of a market, more

         18  buyers for it.

         19                 Ten years ago, when we were buying

         20  land, particularly large lots, we were competing

         21  virtually against ourselves.  Today we in the land

         22  trust community, and I would put DEP in the same

         23  category, bid against developers, large lot buyers,

         24  and speculators, large and small, and a growing

         25  cadre of exurbanites and second home buyers.
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          2                 We see comparable in back country of

          3  close to $3,500 per acre which is two to three times

          4  what it was ten years ago in the Catskills.  To

          5  extrapolate:  Targeting $40 million for land

          6  acquisition per year, DEP would be protecting in the

          7  neighborhood of 11,000 acres, or one percent of the

          8  Cat/Del watershed per year.  If the goal of the FAD

          9  is to protect and control enough of the watershed to

         10  guarantee water quality, the commitment of $40

         11  million per year for five years would protect an

         12  additional five or six percent of the watershed,

         13  taking the City's protected acreage from 11 percent

         14  to just over 16 percent in overall protection,

         15  including state protected lands to 36 percent, which

         16  is still low which we've just heard by national

         17  standards.

         18                 The City should be commended for its

         19  recent watershed protection efforts.  We believe,

         20  however, that the watershed today confronts more

         21  intense threats and challenges than those faced when

         22  we established the MOU ten years ago, and the City's

         23  efforts should evolve accordingly.

         24                 First, what are now defined as low

         25  priority properties are frequently both developable
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          2  and wet.  The EPA report noted that the result of

          3  topographic constraints, 90 percent of urban

          4  development and ag land use in the Cat/Del system is

          5  near and located near streams.

          6                 By focusing its land acquisition on

          7  high priority lands, the highest priority lands, the

          8  City stands to loose significant lands to harmful

          9  uses.

         10                 For the City to protect water quality

         11  and quantity for the long- term, it should be more

         12  aggressive in its acquisition of lower priority,

         13  even back country properties.

         14                 Second, as noted, the majority of ag

         15  land use in the Catskills is located near streams.

         16  The WAC easement program has been incredibly

         17  successful, and importantly, well received.

         18  Nevertheless, we see parcelization and development

         19  of many watershed farms.  I have heard reports that

         20  there are over 20,000 acres, we just heard that, in

         21  the easement pipeline, but funding has been slow and

         22  inadequate.

         23                 In much, the WAC easement program

         24  occurs outside of the Catskill Park boundary, where

         25  public protection and investment is otherwise
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          2  lacking.

          3                 Last, DEP should, I speak somewhat

          4  self-interestingly here, increase the use of

          5  intermediaries such as OSI.

          6                 By way of example, Governor Pataki

          7  has protected a million acres in 12 years, and all

          8  those transactions were negotiated by land trusts in

          9  conjunction with agency staff.

         10                 I will leave my testimony which has

         11  more details.

         12                 Just finally, a year ago the

         13  Brookings Institute released a study that projected

         14  over the next 25 years, there will be as many

         15  structures built in America as currently exist. You

         16  can imagine the consequences of impermeable surface,

         17  more runoff and sources of pollution.

         18                 We're in a race to protect land, and

         19  I think continuing funding at an adequate level is

         20  aggressive and smart. It's also good policy, good

         21  economics, and a great investment.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Elliman.  I appreciate your being here, and I'm

         25  sorry that we can't give everyone more time to
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          2  speak.

          3                 We really greatly appreciate your

          4  perspective.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. ELLIMAN:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Eric, why not?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 My name is Eric Goldstein.  I am an

         11  attorney with the Natural Resources Defense Council.

         12  We agree that DEP has made progress since 1997 on

         13  watershed protection, and there are certainly many

         14  important elements in the City's 2006 proposed

         15  document, and we thank Commissioner Lloyd and Dave

         16  Warne for their good work on that, and on SEQRA

         17  review, particularly their work on the Balley

         18  (phonetic) Resort project.  But NRDC's review of the

         19  2006 Plan reveals two major worrisome shortcomings.

         20                 We're concerned about Catskill

         21  turbidity, and we endorse Watershed Inspector

         22  General's Tierney's comments on this, and in fact,

         23  we would incorporate by references entire statement

         24  which I thought was absolutely first rate.

         25                 But the focus of our brief comments
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          2  to day will be on land acquisition.  In short, we

          3  believe that the proposed funding for land

          4  acquisition over the next five years is woefully

          5  inadequate, at least as set forth in the City's

          6  December 2006 document.

          7                 As you know, land acquisition's been

          8  identified by the NAS, EPA itself, the American

          9  Waterworks Association, as a critical, if not, the

         10  most critical watershed protection strategy.

         11                 In 1997, in the FAD, the City set

         12  aside $250 million plus $50 million in supplemental

         13  funds.  According to DEP documents, the City will

         14  have spent $246 million of those funds by June of

         15  2006.

         16                 Today's testimony also suggests that

         17  there is a $53 million of the $300 million that are

         18  left in the pot.              According to the

         19  City's plan, the City will add an additional $30

         20  million covering the period of 2007 to 2012, and

         21  another $20,000, perhaps, for beyond 2012.

         22                 That's a total of $83 million or

         23  thereabouts, which falls far short of the mark

         24  necessary, and even far short of the pace that the

         25  City has been proceeding at over the last period of

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  time.

          3                 The $20 million for WAC under  --

          4  that has been discussed today, should not count for

          5  the City's contribution for the 2007 and 2012

          6  period.  That had been ordered to have been

          7  transmitted to WAC in December of 2005 for EPA.  So,

          8  the City should not benefit as a result of its delay

          9  in implementing that program.  Those $20 million in

         10  WAC funds should count in the 2002 to 2007 time

         11  period.  Thus, the $83- $86 million that would be

         12  expended under they City's plan is significantly

         13  less than the amount the City has itself spent over

         14  the last ten years, which is about $25 million a

         15  year, and it would take the City's expenditures down

         16  to about $16.6 million.  Even the $25 million a year

         17  over the next five years would not sustain the

         18  program at the current levels of acquisition.

         19  That's because land prices in the Watershed have

         20  skyrocketed, especially since 9/11, increasing 70 to

         21  200 percent, depending upon the area.

         22                 Ulster County single- family house

         23  prices have gone up over the last five years from

         24  $180,000 to $300,000.  In Sullivan County, single-

         25  family home prices have gone up from $100,000 to
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          2  $200,000 just in the last five years.

          3                 It's a dream to think that the same

          4  amount of funds, $25 million a year, or even less,

          5  as DEP has proposed in December, will allow the

          6  program to continue with the necessary or even

          7  current pace.

          8                 Without additional funds, the

          9  programs' pace will decrease at exactly the time

         10  when the development pressures are intensifying.

         11  And the City's funding proposal doesn't provide the

         12  needed funding for WAC which we've talked about, it

         13  doesn't provide the needed for funding for land

         14  trusts to be in partnership with DEC doing the same

         15  work they've done at the state level, it doesn't say

         16  anything about land acquisition in Croton or even

         17  the Croton cross- connection bases, like Cross River

         18  and Croton Falls which we've heard about.

         19                 Vague commitments to add additional

         20  money at some uncertain point in the future, at some

         21  undefined point, is not a commitment that ought to

         22  be in the FAD.

         23                      So in sum, NRDC believes, that

         24  the City's program with respect to the amount of

         25  money set aside for land acquisition, is fatally
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          2  flawed, and it dramatically underfunds what's

          3  without question one of the most essential

          4  strategies.

          5                 We don't see how the Mayor can

          6  advance a sustainablility agenda that leaves New

          7  York City's priceless and irreplaceable watershed

          8  underfunded at this critical point of time, and we

          9  urge you  --  we thank you for the hearing today,

         10  which was very, very helpful.  We urge you to use

         11  your good offices, along with those of EPA, to make

         12  sure that this funding pot gets up to the amount it

         13  ought to be at before the FAD is finalized later

         14  this spring.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you, and I know that we can count on your

         18  support when we are talking about the DEP's ten-

         19  year capital budget because we want to certainly a

         20  key subject.

         21                 Thank you, thank you, Eric.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Cathleen.

         24                 MS. BREEN:  Good morning.

         25                 My name is Cathleen Breen.  I am the
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          2  Watershed Protection Coordinator for the New York

          3  Public Interest Research Group, NYPIRG.

          4                 I am here today representing the

          5  Clean Drinking Water Coalition, which includes

          6  Riverkeeper and the Catskill Center for Conservation

          7  and Development, and NYPIRG, three of the

          8  environmental signatories to the 1997 Watershed

          9  Memorandum of Agreement.

         10                 Being the signatories, we've had a

         11  vested interest in ensuring water quality protection

         12  has been the primary point of the work of DEP over

         13  the last ten years, and we're happy to say that

         14  their has been progress in water quality protection.

         15

         16                 However, we believe that this cities

         17  Long- term Plan that was just put forth, does not

         18  contain the necessary measures to protect New York

         19  City's water supply for the long haul.

         20                 Today we ask the Council to join us

         21  in urging EPA not to rubber stamp this Plan as

         22  complete, but have this Long Rerm Watershed

         23  Protection Plan be the basis for discussion on what

         24  measures should be in the 2007 FAD.

         25                 While EPA did conduct listening
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          2  sessions throughout the Watershed, and did meet with

          3  stakeholders, we did not have the benefit of a Plan

          4  to analyze and discuss.  Now we do, and now the

          5  discussion should begin.

          6                 I think as we've seen earlier today

          7  that you had a lot of pointed questions on some of

          8  the work that was being proposed in the Long- Term

          9  Plan.  These are the type of discussions that we

         10  think should continue and before it's agreed in the

         11  2007 FAD.

         12                 Clearly, the New York City water

         13  supply is invaluable, and as we heard today, it's

         14  still a pricey venture, $6 to $10 billion for a

         15  filtration plant with operating costs $100 million

         16  or so a year.  Not a small amount of change for New

         17  York City rateholders.  We need to be very mindful

         18  of that, and who this will impact in the long haul.

         19                 Unfortunately today and of the

         20  testimony, as well as any of the Long- Term Plan, I

         21  did not hear the term`multi barrier approach' which

         22  is something that we heard frequently in the`97 MOA

         23  negotiations, as well as in the FAD, as well as the

         24  2002 FAD.  Somewhere along, that seemed to have been

         25  dropped out of the dialog.

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Again, I want to make that as our

          3  primary point today, that we need to use this the

          4  springboard to have real discussions on what should

          5  be in the 2007 FAD.

          6                 But as for the Long- Term Plan,

          7  there's just a couple of points that I want to hit

          8  upon.

          9                 As we've mentioned today, and my

         10  colleagues have mentioned previously, the Catskill

         11  turbidity, EPA recognized that as a primary problem

         12  that they see that the New York City water supply

         13  faces.  We believe that the program that's outlined

         14  is very far behind, first off, but also it doesn't

         15  include interim measures that could be put in place.

         16    Again, much needed dialogue to discuss what we

         17  could do right now, as well as the "feasible, cost-

         18  effective measures," that should be in place by

         19  2008.

         20                 Watershed land acquisition, I think

         21  everyone here who's concerned about preserving New

         22  York City's water supply is going to speak to that

         23  issue.  Land acquisition has to be a critical

         24  component of any Long- Term Watershed Protection

         25  Plan.               Again, it was mentioned earlier
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          2  that there's currently 30 percent.  We believe, as

          3  well, 45 percent ownership either through fee simple

          4  or conservation easement is the way to go in order

          5  to secure the water supply.  Conservation easements

          6  are a way that we really think have been working

          7  well, increasing funding and support for WAC, using

          8  land trusts, really to the way that they were

          9  supposed to be utilizing as per the`97 MOA, and

         10  really increasing staffing and participation in the

         11  land trust program, extending the LAP Program over

         12  to the Middle Branch, as well as Cross River/Croton

         13  Falls as mentioned earlier, storm water, a very big

         14  issue, need to address, and the coordinated

         15  enforcement, it's something that I think in

         16  partnership I think all coming together with respect

         17  to working together to make sure that the water

         18  quality is protected, and that we continue to have

         19  clean, safe drinking water as we go forward.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  Cathleen, we appreciate your--

         22                 MS. BREEN:  Oh, sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You get the

         24  prize so far.

         25                 MS. BREEN:  I've done this before.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Paul, Paul good

          3  to see you.

          4                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Good to see you, as

          5  well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We've got to

          7  get you out to Willow Lake by the way, which we were

          8  out at the other day, but separate topic, another

          9  topic.

         10                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  I have something I

         11  think very simple to say, which you may have heard

         12  before.  I know my colleagues here have.

         13                 The question in front of us is for

         14  the engineering and re- engineering of the Cat/Del

         15  Watershed.  Basically, what kind of performance

         16  criteria, and it's very simple, it's water capture.

         17  It's increasing ground water storage, and increasing

         18  the capacity of the water table to hold water

         19  altogether.

         20                 I have to say DEP has done some

         21  brilliant things, aiming at storing excess water in

         22   --  someplace in the watershed down here in the

         23  aquifer of the marine is a brilliant idea.  It

         24  should be done also in the Watershed altogether.

         25                 Building on Jim Tierney's approach
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          2  altogether, every piece of roadway, every piece of

          3  parking lot has to be evaluated in terms of how much

          4  water it can capture.  It ought to be a million

          5  gallons- plus for every acre parking lot.  Every

          6  roadway should be designed for catching a two, a

          7  five, a ten or perhaps a hundred year storm.

          8                 A little know fact, perhaps, the

          9  1,600 miles of the Cat/Del Watershed, if you go ten

         10  feet down and count the veracity, it's about 20

         11  percent, would hold about a trillion gallons of

         12  water.  That could run New York City for quite a

         13  period of time.  I know we have to maintain the

         14  reservoir levels so that the flood protection is

         15  maintained for the Watershed population up there.

         16  The water table is a place to do that, basically

         17  ecological engineering to protect the stream edges

         18  against the flow of water down those beautiful clay

         19  banks.

         20                 The reason the Schoharie and Green

         21  County is the richest moss floor in the region is

         22  because of the beautiful clay.  If it gets eroded,

         23  it doesn't help them, and it doesn't help us.

         24                 DEP is on the right track with

         25  management plan with the Watershed.  They've got to
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          2  keep high intensity, rapid flow from shearing those

          3  particles where they're doing good for the Watershed

          4  and for the byoda (phonetic) now, out of the

          5  Schoharie, out of the Ashokan.

          6                 Altogether, we have in front of us an

          7  opportunity to take that unbelievably valuable land,

          8  and it's valuable for the home owners and the

          9  property owners, as well as the townships

         10  altogether, and where people are developing it, to

         11  put penalties if they are not catching a hundred

         12  year storm, a ten year storm, a five year storm, a

         13  two year storm.

         14                 On the other side, property

         15  developers who actually make those capacities

         16  increased, enhanced, by the way they develop their

         17  properties, should be rewarded with developmental

         18  incentives, and basically the kind of housing that

         19  they can build for clustering and otherwise.

         20                 So, it's a very simple message.  Zero

         21  discharge will serve all of us because what makes

         22  that landscape green and beautiful is in fact, the

         23  water, which runs the byoda and every terrestrial

         24  landscape that there is, and unless it's filtered

         25  through the exquisite filters that Jim Tierney and
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          2  many people at DEP have tried to work, it isn't

          3  going to happen.

          4                 I said before, a square meter of

          5  flatland can filter about a gram of phosphorus,

          6  phosphate phosphorus per year, oxidized soil can do

          7  about 100 times that, so the water should never be

          8  allowed to go directly from a pipe into the

          9  receiving waters.

         10                 I'll trust the thousand square meters

         11  of surface on the  grama-bumis (phonetic) or the

         12  10,000 bacteria per cubic centimeter of soil to do

         13  the work of actually cleaning things up for us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         15  Paul, I appreciate that.

         16                 Please say hi to Julie for me, okay?

         17                 We don't have time for any more

         18  comments or questions, but thanks so much for being

         19  here.  We'll be in touch.

         20                 Thank you, again.

         21                 Next panel, Eugenia Flatow, David

         22  Ferguson, Carolyn Summers, Fay Muir.

         23                 Eugenia Flatow, I'll just say on the

         24  record, which you just told me, Eugenia Flatow has

         25  yielded her time, making her a great American.
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          2  Thank you.  She was a great American before that,

          3  but continues in her greatness.

          4                 A pleasure to have you all here, and

          5  counsel to the Committee will give the oath, and

          6  then we can proceed.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

          8  raise your right hand.

          9                 In the testimony that you're about to

         10  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         11  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         12                 MR. FERGUSON:  I do.

         13                 MS. MUIR:  I do.

         14                 MS. SUMMERS:  I do.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We'll start on

         17  the left with Fay, okay.

         18                 MS. MUIR:  Yes, my name is Fay Muir.

         19  I am the President of the Croton Watershed Clean

         20  Water Coalition.

         21                 The Croton Watershed Clean Water

         22  Coalition represents community, housing,

         23  environmental, sporting, civic and religious groups

         24  throughout New York City, Westchester and Putnam

         25  Counties.
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          2                 The Croton reservoirs supply drinking

          3  water to New York City's minority communities and

          4  residents in Putnam and Westchester Counties.  The

          5  need to maintain water quality in these reservoirs

          6  cannot be over- stated since it is used to alleviate

          7  siltation discoloration to the Catskill/Delaware

          8  water. Also, in times of drought the Croton is

          9  called upon to supply up to 30 percent of the City's

         10  water supply.

         11                 In addition, the state of disrepair

         12  of the Delaware Aqueduct may lead to even more

         13  dependence on the Croton.

         14                 Now, the Department of Environmental

         15  Protection made a presentation to the Facilities

         16  Monitoring Committee of the Van Cortlandt Park Water

         17  Treatment Plant.  The subject was Watershed

         18  Protection for the Croton Watershed.

         19                 The Protection Plan for the

         20  Catskill/Delaware was explained in detail then, a

         21  concluding sentence stated this also applies to the

         22  Croton.  I cannot explain why the agenda subject was

         23  not addressed but the Croton Watershed Protection

         24  Plan deserves better than an afterthought.

         25                 Now regulatory agencies are focusing
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          2  on phosphorus as being most responsible for water

          3  quality decline in the Croton reservoir.  One pound

          4  of phosphorus can trigger the growth of 115 pounds

          5  of algae.  This creates the need for increased

          6  chlorine to disinfect our drinking water, and some

          7  disinfection by- products are suspected carcinogens.

          8                 Now, the DEP data show that

          9  phosphorus levels in eight out of ten Croton

         10  reservoirs have been increasing.  At least 85

         11  percent of phosphorus entering the reservoirs

         12  originates from nonpoint sources.  These nonpoint

         13  sources are storm water runoff from roads, parking

         14  lots, lawn and real estate development.

         15                 The Phase II stormwater regulations

         16  prohibit any increase in phosphorus from development

         17  to reservoirs listed as "phosphorus- impaired."  The

         18  towns in each of the various Croton Watershed

         19  reservoirs have been assigned phosphorus reduction

         20  loads.

         21                 However, 3,000 acres of mostly

         22  forested land in the Croton Watershed are owned by

         23  real estate developers.  The critical issue is to

         24  know, as accurately as possible, whether a proposed

         25  development's storm water plan will decrease the
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          2  phosphorus load to the reservoirs or, at the very

          3  least, not increase it.

          4                 Site- specific data that evaluate

          5  phosphorus export from the pre- developed land are

          6  needed because the export coefficient being used by

          7  developers today for forested land is double the

          8  correct coefficient, that is, those used by DEP and

          9  DEC in determining the Total Maximum Daily Loads for

         10  phosphorus.

         11                 Stormwater management systems should

         12  use the proper pre- development values in the

         13  project design and approval process.  Using the

         14  proper design basis needed to lower phosphorus to

         15  the correct levels ought to be mandated.  This would

         16  have a dramatic effect in reducing phosphorus loads

         17  to the reservoirs, in increasing water quality, and

         18  in protecting our health.

         19                 The DEP is the lead agency for

         20  evaluating systems on development projects, and

         21  grant the permits.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  thank you, Fay.

         25                 Carolyn Summers.
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          2                 MS. SUMMERS:  Hi, many name is

          3  Carolyn Summers, and I am a member of Federated

          4  Conservationists of Westchester County.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          6  comment of the Program.

          7                 I will limit my comments to the

          8  portion regarding Land Acquisition, and thank you

          9  Chairman Gennaro for spending so much time on trying

         10  to sort out the financial arrangements because in

         11  reading the Program on- line, I had a lot of trouble

         12  myself trying to figure out exactly what was being

         13  committed to, and that forms the basis of my

         14  comments.

         15                 Most, if not all, of the other

         16  protection measures, other than land acquisition,

         17  are means of cleaning up or mitigating pollution

         18  that has already occurred or is in the process of

         19  occurring.  For this reason, federal regulations for

         20  drinking water supplies emphasize the importance of

         21  land acquisition.

         22                 The Program contains figures, I'm

         23  talking about the Program on- line as I read it,

         24  contains figures that allow for an assessment of

         25  progress to date.
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          2                 Going into the Program, the State

          3  owned 212 acres, and the City owned 36,000 acres and

          4  small change.

          5                 As of October 31, 2006, the City has

          6  purchased in- fee or holds easements on an

          7  additional 77,619 acres.

          8                 I don't quite understand how that's

          9  tripling the assets, as it was referred to earlier,

         10  but be that as it may, those were the figures and

         11  that was the math as I found it in the Program.

         12                 While this is indeed progress, it

         13  should not be allow to obscure the fact that the

         14  City is still far short of the goal of owning or

         15  controlling at least 50 percent of the Watershed.

         16                 In fact, the City and State's

         17  combined holdings have risen to only 30 percent of

         18  the total watershed area.

         19                 The City should be seeking to

         20  purchase at least another 200,000 acres.  Current

         21  land prices, however, are anywhere from five to ten

         22  times higher than 1997 levels.

         23                 At present, the additional $30

         24  million mentioned in the Program will probably not

         25  buy more than another 10,000 acres, hardly enough to
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          2  either maintain credibility with federal regulators

          3  or provide pure drinking water over the long- term.

          4  In fact, the Program makes no projection of, nor

          5  does it set targets for, the amount of land to be

          6  purchased.

          7                 The $30 million figure contained in

          8  this Program can only reinforce the word on

          9  Catskills streets that the City's appraisers are not

         10  keeping up with recent sales figures, and are

         11  offering unrealistically low prices.

         12                 In the coming years, the City's land

         13  acquisition staff well need to be far more

         14  aggressive and innovative as they race the

         15  speculators for a dwindling supply of available land

         16  parcels.  Sending out letters to landowners who have

         17  already turned down the City's offer is hardly the

         18  way to meet this challenge.

         19                 New York City must demonstrate an

         20  effective Long Term Watershed Protection Program by

         21  making a meaningful financial and programmatic

         22  commitment to land acquisition.  No amount of window

         23  dressing on the remaining components of the Program

         24  can restore credibility when its most important

         25  feature, land acquisition, is so poorly planned and
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          2  so vastly underfunded.

          3                 In the few seconds I have remaining,

          4  I would just like to second all of Jim Tierney's

          5  comments, Kim Elliman's comments, and say that I

          6  totally agree.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          9  much, Carolyn.  We really appreciate your being

         10  here.

         11                 Now my good friend, David Ferguson.

         12                 MR. FERGUSON:  How are you doing,

         13  Jim?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How are you,

         15  David?

         16                 MR. FERGUSON:  Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good to see

         18  you.

         19                 MR. FERGUSON:  We're right down to

         20  the wire here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we've

         22  been there before, David.  It's okay.

         23                 MR. FERGUSON:  At the risk  --  I

         24  live there.

         25                 Not to overdue it but I mean, I also
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          2  wanted to say in all my years of experience with

          3  government, Jim Tierney is really doing all of us a

          4  lot of good, and it also heartens one to see that

          5  government can work well.

          6                 The multi- barrier concept that EPA

          7  has pushed for years, I mean, we used to hear it on

          8  a regular basis, when we were against the filtration

          9  plant in the Croton, they would say, "Well, it's

         10  multi- barrier, you protect the Watershed and you

         11  build a plant, and you disinfect."  Well we said,

         12   "Once you build a plant, you're going to have a

         13  lack of protection."  That was already true.  The

         14  phosphorus TMDL levels were different for the

         15  Cat/Del than the Croton from the State, because if

         16  was going to be filtered.  There's just a whole list

         17  of things I can go down. And now that's it's

         18  happened, that's what's happening.  So, the maps

         19  that I gave you up there, we call it`The Measles

         20  Map,' and it's 32, and that's just a beginning, 32

         21  developments that we're fighting up there, and we've

         22  got our finger in the dike, and we'd like some help

         23  from DEP.

         24                 You know, the people up there that

         25  are fighting for us without our help are asking for
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          2  DEP to come.  DEP will send often its report a few

          3  hours before the meeting, that they're going to

          4  discuss the particular development, and that's not

          5  really helpful.

          6                 They would like to have  --  I know

          7  it's a staff problem, I know there are a lot of

          8  developments in every day being submitted, but this

          9  is something in terms of personnel that would yield

         10  something worthwhile to all of us because the people

         11  in the Watershed, contrary to what we've heard all

         12  these years, are not against us.  They are working

         13  for us, and we should certainly  --  Appleton even

         14  mentioned this, it's a wasted resource, and so I

         15  just want to also before  --  Eagle River was one of

         16  the big battles, among many, and in that case the

         17  DEP stepped up and came up with  --  joined a

         18  consortium, so that the leveraged the money that

         19  they had and actually, really helped that.  We

         20  bought that property, I mean, the world is a better

         21  place because we have the water.

         22                 Also, now we have Granite Point which

         23  is on a peninsula right in a reservoir, and it was

         24  used as a shooting range, and it's full of lead.

         25  They want to develop that, and DEP is in there
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          2  measuring the lead and so forth.  It's a question

          3  again of what threshold you use for the lead, and so

          4  forth, the EPA regulations or whatever, but at least

          5  these are things though, and part of the property is

          6  DEP property, and these are the kinds of things that

          7  boggle the mind of a mere citizen looking at the

          8  potential of what's going on out here every day, and

          9  so, I would also like to see as recommended by FX

         10  Brown who was hired by DEP to evaluate CAC for the

         11  Croton that we used to have still, and I appreciate

         12  that the DEP is coming in on the IMA that we're

         13  doing on the Kisco River.  They are helping there.

         14                 I would like to see a City Council

         15  hearing on the Croton, and also, the huge amounts of

         16  money that are just  -- and I have one of our

         17  newsletters on this, I would like to see the

         18  Comptroller of the City audit DEP.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  David.  It's always a pleasure to see you.

         22                 I want to thank this panel for being

         23  here.  We appreciate the value the you brought to

         24  this hearing.

         25                 I also want to recognize that we're
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          2  joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio from

          3  Brooklyn.  Pleasure to have you here, Bill.

          4                 Our final panel Carl Schwartz, Dean

          5  Frazier, DanaLee Cohen. I'll say on the record that

          6  DanaLee Cohen has yielded her time, right?  Thank

          7  you. So, it's Carl Schwartz and Dean Frazier. You

          8  know, I'd entertain some shout outs from the

          9  audience, but I really can't do that.

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Carl is going

         11  to yield his time, too.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Fine, fine,

         13  okay.

         14                 Carl, thank you very much.

         15  Appreciate that, appreciate that.  Thank you as

         16  well, appreciate that because we are on a time

         17  crunch.

         18                 That leaves us with Dean Frazier,

         19  please come forward.

         20                 But certainly let the record show

         21  that Carl Schwartz and DanaLee Cohen are great

         22  Americans for yielding their time, appreciate that.

         23                 Mr. Schwartz, thank you for being

         24  here.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Dean
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          2  Frazier.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, oh, oh,

          4  Dean Frazier, sorry about that.  Forgive me.  I see

          5  that you've come from Delaware County to be here.

          6  We appreciate you're making the effort to come.

          7                 Donna will give you the oath, and

          8  then you can proceed.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         10  raise your right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that you're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  I do.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you.

         18                 Before you start the clock on Mr.

         19  Frazier, I'd like to point out that he's the

         20  Commissioner of the Delaware County Department of

         21  Watershed Affairs.

         22                 So, a real pleasure to have you with

         23  us, Mr. Frazier.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Thank you.

         25  It's a pleasure to be here.  It's been a long day so
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          2  far.  No reference to the presentations, just

          3  getting here, but anyway.

          4                 I'm not prepared to speak to the

          5  entire scope of the Long- Term Plan.

          6                 So, I'm going to go off to the

          7  reservation for just one second.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  There's been a

         10  tremendous amount of comments on the Land

         11  Acquisition Program, and without arguing the merits

         12  of that, I would like to point out that on that

         13  particular topic we in the counties, and other West-

         14  of- Hudson Counties are concerned about what is the

         15  long- term impact on our communities.

         16                 So, while we acknowledge that

         17  acquisition is an important part of water quality

         18  protection, there is a concern in the watershed

         19  about what that does mean to us long- term.

         20                 So going back to my script, I didn't

         21  practice or prepared for three minutes, the Long-

         22  Term Watershed Protection Plan has many positive

         23  elements.

         24                 However, there remain many

         25  opportunities for improved watershed protection,
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          2  local economic prosperity, and improved partnership.

          3    How's that done?

          4                 First, engage more intensively the

          5  institutional capacity of local agencies, and

          6  second, capitalize on existing community stewardship

          7  to build local ownership of issues, this speaks to

          8  the Commissioner's, or DEP's comments about long-

          9  term commitment, and education, and in obviously,

         10  the subsequent resolutions through local initiative

         11  programs.  Local programs obviously conceived at the

         12  local level are in keeping with the anti-

         13  degradation principles of the Long- Term Plan, and

         14  enhance the effectiveness of existing CWC and WAC

         15  Programs.

         16                 What I'm going to propose is not a

         17  duplication, but an enhancement.  I'm a member of

         18  the West Hudson Technical Advisory Group, which is

         19  comprised of county agency professionals involved in

         20  providing support for communities, individuals, and

         21  businesses regarding watershed matters.  We are the

         22  institutional capacity that watershed counties have

         23  had to enhance and support as a result of the

         24  Agreement.  WHTAG has a record of working to resolve

         25  MO- related issues, and on occasion have been a
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          2  resource for the coalition watershed towns.

          3                 Each county's TAG member has a local

          4  initiative program, and the complexity varies.  Two

          5  more prominent efforts are the Green County

          6  Watershed Systems Program, and the Delaware County

          7  Action Plan, or DCAP, which I handed out to you.

          8                 DCAP illustrates what local programs

          9  can do in West-of-Hudson Counties.  DCAP represents

         10  a commitment to water quality protection. Now, I

         11  know these numbers are peanuts compared to the

         12  numbers being thrown around, but given that's

         13  there's 48,000 people in the county and only half

         14  live in the Watershed, these are significant numbers

         15  for us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, and Mr.

         17  Frazier I just wanted to say that because you are

         18  the Commissioner and you've come so far to be here,

         19  I have taken you off the clock.  I want you to

         20  finish your statement in relative peace.  I know

         21  you've had a busy day here.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Geez, if I'd

         23  have known that, I would come ready with more

         24  comments.  But anyway, I really do appreciate that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  So, I'll slow

          3  the pace just a little bit.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  New York

          5  hospitality, what can I say?

          6                 We're just a small town on the Hudson

          7  here.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GENNARO:  Yes, just

          9  trying to get by, I know all about it.

         10                 We've been able to leverage at least

         11  $10 million other dollars in grant funding which

         12  certainly would have come to your benefit in terms

         13  of anything we've done.  We had this misfortunate

         14  news of loosing $3.4 million in water quality grants

         15  yesterday that would have been a benefit to you as

         16  well.

         17                 Anyway, DEP through the CWC and WAC

         18  has provided some funding for DCAP initiatives.  DEP

         19  has recognized DCAP components in its reports to the

         20  U.S. EPA, DCAP and other local programs and numerous

         21  agencies in their roles are not recognized in the

         22  Long- Term Plan.  This represents a tremendous

         23  institutional capacity that could to extend down to

         24  individuals in the Watershed and affect land uses.

         25                 Local programs, such as DCAP, add a
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          2  great value to the water supply, they are

          3  comprehensive, multiple- pollutant oriented.  We

          4  have a strong institutional capacity to various

          5  agencies.  Those agencies have historical

          6  institutional arrangements with communities,

          7  constituents, academia, state and federal agencies.

          8  They have charges stemming from them.

          9                 Our plans have solid scientific and

         10  technical base.  I've heard the term multiple-

         11  barrier use a number of times today, this entire

         12  thing is based on multi- barrier approach.

         13                 Partnerships included federal, state,

         14  local and the City of New York in the development

         15  and guidance of this Plan.  So, we have reached out.

         16                 We have developed innovative programs

         17  that were not necessarily a part of existing

         18  programs, but we saw as important, such as this

         19  thing called`Precision Feeding.'  It's all involved,

         20  how you feed a dairy cow.  This can have a huge

         21  impact, of course in the Cannonsville the phosphorus

         22  is down, but this could reduce source loads of

         23  phosphorus in that basin by as much as a third.

         24  That's the phosphorus coming into the basin, and

         25  make no mistake about it--
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What could

          3  reduce it by a third?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Adopting this

          5  Precision Feeding Management Program.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  And we are

          8  proposing to do that in partnership with Watershed

          9  Agricultural Councils because there is a synergy

         10  there.  With what they're doing, it would integrate

         11  very well.  We've had a lot of conversations along

         12  those lines.

         13                 In any event, that's  --  that poses

         14  an opportunity that's management oriented.  It's not

         15  structurally oriented.  We've quantified these

         16  results scientifically. They've been published in

         17  peer review documents.  It's not just some fly- by-

         18  the- seat- of- your- pants approach.

         19                 Because I was planning three minuets,

         20  I've limited my scope.  But I want to give you an

         21  example of how I think there are opportunities to

         22  take advantage of the local institutional capacity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Roads provide

         25  a direct link between storm water and streams.  A
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          2  misplaced culvert can unravel a street.  We've seen

          3  that happen in the Watershed, and what we're

          4  suggesting here is that  --  as a result of that,

          5  we're developing what we call`Highway Management

          6  Plans,' it's all outlined in here for each Delaware

          7  County, and that includes every town in the

          8  Watershed.

          9                 I'm very interested in this, this has

         10  mutual benefits for not only the towns, but the City

         11  of New York.  So, there's what we think, is a lot of

         12  potential there.

         13                 So, I'm suggesting here that

         14  utilizing or combining what we consider the Stream

         15  Quarter Management Program to be an excellent model,

         16  one that the DEP has initiated in the Watershed is a

         17  fantastic model to adopt for other issues in the

         18  Watershed.

         19                 If you combine that with Highway

         20  Management Planning, it's just one example of a

         21  tremendous opportunity for increased education,

         22  that's a commitment to long- term, demonstration, we

         23  need demonstrations to show these folks managing the

         24  highways what are good practices, and how can you do

         25  that.  We need to provide the technical support and
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          2  the training.            In my mind, this leads to

          3  improved partnership and water quality protection,

          4  and any opportunity we can find ways to improve the

          5  partnership and cooperation, that's a good thing

          6  because as you know, there's often controversy

          7  emanating from the Delaware County region.

          8                 But in any event--

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I've heard

         10  that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Once or twice,

         12  maybe?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  We're just

         15  trying to get by like you folks, too.

         16                 The good will created by New York

         17  City's assistance to Delaware County in response to

         18  the June floods still exist.

         19                 I am a lifelong resident of Walton,

         20  New York.  I happen to live where I didn't get any

         21  damage, but I saw firsthand what DEP did.  I walked

         22  by the DEP police headquarters every morning when I

         23  went out for a walk.  That good will, I don't know

         24  how we do it, but I think there's opportunities

         25  through the Long Term Watershed Protection Plan  --
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          2  there ought to be a way to capitalize on that.

          3                 I think that, going back to Stream

          4  Quarter Management Plan, that's a model that we can

          5  somehow take in advance, because every time you put

          6  the city staff in the context as a resource, and a

          7  cooperator, as opposed to the typical vision or view

          8  of DEP staff as a heavy- handed regulator, any time

          9  we can do that, that builds a partnership long-

         10  term.  I don't have a plan exactly how this needs to

         11  be sorted out, but I think it's something that could

         12  be injected and incorporated, and I think it could

         13  work.

         14                 If you could witness what I've

         15  witnessed in the Stream Quarter Management Process,

         16  I would never have dreamed that some of the people

         17  coming to these meetings would accept it, and view

         18  the DEP staff as a positive resource, and it's

         19  really been a great experience.

         20                 So, bottom line is, that I think that

         21  we ought to try to find ways to have a more

         22  productive partnership.  The technical advisory

         23  group is developing comments the we hadn't

         24  necessarily planned on submitting to this group, but

         25  we were going to submit to some of the agencies.
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          2                 In any event, I'd like to talk about

          3  a lot more things, but given the times constraints,

          4  I'll close.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, thank

          7  you, thank you.

          8                 We have got a question from Council

          9  Member DeBlasio, whom I will recognize in a moment.

         10

         11                 I just want to make mention of the

         12  fact that we're joined by Council Member Mike Nelson

         13  from Brooklyn, but I recognize Council Member

         14  deBlasio for a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. I'll be brief, I know time is short.

         17                 I had the honor of being in your

         18  County in July and August because my children were

         19  at camp there, and I happened to be invited, right

         20  after the flooding had occurred.

         21                 I wonder if you could just give us a

         22  word in your perspective of what the City did do

         23  that was of assistance to Delaware County, just so

         24  we have your perspective on it.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Well, I think
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          2  the City of New York sending, I believe, their folks

          3  from the Sanitation Department.

          4                 In my home town, they were there

          5  Johnny- on- the Spot.  Some of the biggest

          6  adversaries with regard to the City and regulations

          7  and so forth, have made public statements with

          8  regard to that help.  You went outside the Watershed

          9  to the Village of Sydney, New York which was

         10  devastated, and helped clean up that mess.  The DEP

         11  staff were excellent with regard to trying to find

         12  ways to mitigate some of the damage caused by the

         13  floods in the Village of Walton, and believe me, the

         14  Village of Walton was devastated.  Ira Stern

         15  (phonetic) and others within DEP were very active.

         16  They were up there, they were there when we needed

         17  them.  They've been part of a process we're trying

         18  to put together for some Stream Quarter Management

         19  studies, and for flood mitigation.  It was just

         20  heartening to see that, and when you hear many of

         21  the folks in the County who are quite critical of

         22  the City of New York talking in a very positive

         23  light publicly, at a county board supervisors

         24  meeting, I think that speaks volumes for what it

         25  meant to the people in the Watershed. I really do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          3  very much, it's good to hear.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  You're

          6  welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  Council Member deBlasio.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Frazier.  I think it's

         10  an active good will for you to come here, all the

         11  way down from Delaware County to put forward your

         12  good views about how you, through DCAP, can be

         13  helpful.

         14                 I would certainly encourage you to

         15  get any information that you want and turn it over

         16  to the DEP or to the EPA.  Also, to this Committee

         17  because we're going to be involved at the process.

         18  We want to see everyone recognized.  We want to see

         19  everyone participate.  We want to see everyone who

         20  had some value to add to this process be recognized

         21  as such, and so, it's great to make your

         22  acquaintance.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRAZIER:  Same here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We just

         25  appreciate your being here, and hopefully you'll be
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          2  able to stay a minute or two after the hearing so we

          3  can  --  I can just say hi, and get to know you a

          4  little bit, and so, we appreciate that very much.

          5                 But we have to turn the room over,

          6  and so with no one else wishing to be heard, this

          7  hearing is adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:20 p.m.)

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            144

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 30th day of January 2007.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          EMILY GRAVES

                                                            145

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              EMILY GRAVES

         23

         24

         25

